
“Principles of Finance”.

: The Financial Environment: Firms, Investors And Markets

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Define the term finance

 To describe what the subject of financial management is about.

 To explain profit maximization.

 To explain the 10 principles that form the basics of financial management.

Definition/Overview:

Finance: The field of finance refers to the concepts of time, money and risk and how they are

interrelated. Banks are the main facilitators of funding through the provision of credit, although

private equity, mutual funds, hedge funds, and other organizations have become important.

Financial assets, known as investments, are financially managed with careful attention to

financial risk management to control financial risk. Financial instruments allow many forms of

securitized assets to be traded on securities exchanges such as stock exchanges, including debt

such as bonds as well as equity in publicly-traded corporations.

Key Points:

1. Maximization of Shareholders Wealth

Any costs incurred by a firm may be classed into two groups: fixed cost and variable cost.

Fixed costs are incurred by the business at any level of output, including zero output. These

may include equipment maintenance, rent, wages, and general upkeep. Variable costs change

with the level of output, increasing as more product is generated. Materials consumed during
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production often have the largest impact on this category. Fixed cost and variable cost,

combined, equal total cost.

Revenue is the total amount of money that flows into the firm. This can be from any source,

including product sales, government subsidies, venture capital and personal funds.

Marginal cost and revenue, depending on whether the calculus approach is taken or not, are

defined as either the change in cost or revenue as each additional unit is produced, or the

derivative of cost or revenue with respect to quantity output. It may also be defined as the

addition to total cost as output increase by a single unit. For instance, taking the first

definition, if it costs a firm 400 USD to produce 5 units and 480 USD to produce 6, the

marginal cost of the sixth unit is approximately 80 dollars, although this is more accurately

stated as the marginal cost of the 5.5th unit due to linear interpolation. Calculus is capable of

providing more accurate answers if regression equations can be provided.

 Total Cost-Total Revenue Method

To obtain the profit maximizing output quantity, we start by recognizing that profit is

equal to total revenue (TR) minus total cost (TC). Given a table of costs and revenues at

each quantity, we can either compute equations or plot the data directly on a graph.

Finding the profit-maximizing output is as simple as finding the output at which profit

reaches its maximum. That is represented by output Q in the diagram.

There are two graphical ways of determining that Q is optimal. Firstly, we see that the

profit curve is at its maximum at this point (A). Secondly, we see that at the point (B) that

the tangent on the total cost curve (TC) is parallel to the total revenue curve (TR), the

surplus of revenue net of costs (B,C) is the greatest. Because total revenue minus total

costs is equal to profit, the line segment C,B is equal in length to the line segment A,Q.

Computing the price at which to sell the product requires knowledge of the firm's demand

curve. The price at which quantity demanded equals profit-maximizing output is the

optimum price to sell the product.
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 Marginal Cost-Marginal Revenue Method

If total revenue and total cost figures are difficult to procure, this method may also be

used. For each unit sold, marginal profit equals marginal revenue minus marginal cost.

Then, if marginal revenue is greater than marginal cost, marginal profit is positive, and if

marginal revenue is less than marginal cost, marginal profit is negative. When marginal

revenue equals marginal cost, marginal profit is zero. Since total profit increases when

marginal profit is positive and total profit decreases when marginal profit is negative, it

must reach a maximum where marginal profit is zero - or where marginal cost equals

marginal revenue. This is because the producer has collected positive profit up until the

intersection of MR and MC (where zero profit is collected and any further production

will result in negative marginal profit, because MC will be larger than MR). The

intersection of marginal revenue (MR) with marginal cost (MC) is shown in the next

diagram as point A. If the industry is competitive (as is assumed in the diagram), the firm

faces a demand curve (D) that is identical to its Marginal revenue curve (MR), and this is

a horizontal line at a price determined by industry supply and demand. Average total

costs are represented by curve ATC. Total economic profits are represented by area

P,A,B,C. The optimum quantity (Q) is the same as the optimum quantity (Q) in the first

diagram.

If the firm is operating in a non-competitive market, minor changes would have to be

made to the diagrams.

2. Principles of Ethics in Financial management

Ten Principles that form the foundation of financial management.

 Principle 1: The risk-return tradeoff - we won't take additional risk unless we expect to be

compensated with additional return.
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 Principle 2: The time value of money - a dollar received today is worth more than a dollar

received in the future.

 Principle 3: Cash -- Not Profits -- is King. In measuring value we will use cash flows rather than

accounting profits because it is only cash flows that the firm receives and is able to reinvest.

 Principle 4: Incremental cash flows - it's only what changes that count. In making business

decisions we will only concern ourselves with what happens as a result of that decision.

 Principle 5: The curse of competitive markets - why it's hard to find exceptionally profitable

projects. In competitive markets, extremely large profits cannot exist for very long because of

competition moving in to exploit those large profits. As a result, profitable projects can only be

found if the market is made less competitive, either through product differentiation or by

achieving a cost advantage.

 Principle 6: Efficient Capital Markets - The markets are quick and the prices are right.

 Principle 7: The agency problem - managers won't work for the owners unless it's in their best

interest. The agency problem is a result of the separation between the decision makers and the

owners of the firm. As a result managers may make decisions that are not in line with the goal of

maximization of shareholder wealth.

 Principle 8: Taxes bias business decisions.

 Principle 9: All risk is not equal since some risk can be diversified away and some cannot. The

process of diversification can reduce risk, and as a result, measuring a projects or an asset's risk

is very difficult.

 Principle 10: Ethical behavior is doing the right thing, and ethical dilemmas are everywhere in

finance. Ethical behavior is important in financial management, just as it is important in

everything we do. Unfortunately, precisely how we define what is and what is not ethical

behavior is sometimes difficult. Nevertheless, we should not give up the quest.

: Financial Institutions And Markets

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:
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 To Explain how financial institutions serve as intermediaries between investors and firms.

 To Provide an overview of financial markets.

 To Explain how firms and investors trade money market and capital market securities in the

financial markets in order to satisfy their needs.

 To Describe the major securities exchanges.

 Describe the foreign exchange market.

Definition/Overview:

Financial Institution: In financial economics, a financial institution acts as an agent that

provides financial services for its clients or members. Financial institutions generally fall under

financial regulation from a government authority. Common types of financial institutions include

banks, building societies, credit unions, stock brokerages, asset management firms, and similar

businesses.

Key Points:

1. Function of Financial Institutions

Financial institutions provide service as intermediaries of the capital and debt markets. They

are responsible for transferring funds from investors to companies, in need of those funds.

The presence of financial institutions facilitate the flow of money through the economy. To

do so, savings are pooled to mitigate the risk brought to provide funds for loans. Such is the

primary means for depository institutions to develop revenue. Should the yield curve become

inverse, firms in this arena will offer additional fee-generating services including securities

underwriting, and prime brokerage.

2. Financial Markets

In economics, a financial market is a mechanism that allows people to easily buy and sell

(trade) financial securities (such as stocks and bonds), commodities (such as precious metals
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or agricultural goods), and other fungible items of value at low transaction costs and at prices

that reflect the efficient-market hypothesis.

Financial markets have evolved significantly over several hundred years and are undergoing

constant innovation to improve liquidity.

Both general markets (where many commodities are traded) and specialized markets (where

only one commodity is traded) exist. Markets work by placing many interested buyers and

sellers in one "place", thus making it easier for them to find each other. An economy which

relies primarily on interactions between buyers and sellers to allocate resources is known as a

market economy in contrast either to a command economy or to a non-market economy such

as a gift economy.

Typically a borrower issues a receipt to the lender promising to pay back the capital. These

receipts are securities which may be freely bought or sold. In return for lending money to the

borrower, the lender will expect some compensation in the form of interest or dividends.

3. Raising capital

To understand financial markets, let us look at what they are used for, i.e. what is their

purpose?

Without financial markets, borrowers would have difficulty finding lenders themselves.

Intermediaries such as banks help in this process. Banks take deposits from those who have

money to save. They can then lend money from this pool of deposited money to those who

seek to borrow. Banks popularly lend money in the form of loans and mortgages.

More complex transactions than a simple bank deposit require markets where lenders and

their agents can meet borrowers and their agents, and where existing borrowing or lending

commitments can be sold on to other parties. A good example of a financial market is a stock

exchange. A company can raise money by selling shares to investors and its existing shares

can be bought or sold.

The following table illustrates where financial markets fit in the relationship between lenders

and borrowers:
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Relationship between lenders and borrowers

Lenders Financial Intermediaries Financial Markets Borrowers

Individuals

Companies

Banks

Insurance Companies

Pension Funds

Mutual Funds

Interbank

Stock Exchange

Money Market

Bond Market

Foreign Exchange

Individuals

Companies

Central Government

Municipalities

Public Corporations

4. Lenders

4.1 Individuals

Many individuals are not aware that they are lenders, but almost everybody does lend

money in many ways. A person lends money when he or she:

o puts money in a savings account at a bank;

o contributes to a pension plan;

o pays premiums to an insurance company;

o invests in government bonds; or

o invests in company shares.

4.2 Companies

Companies tend to be borrowers of capital. When companies have surplus cash that is

not needed for a short period of time, they may seek to make money from their cash

surplus by lending it via short term markets called money markets.

There are a few companies that have very strong cash flows. These companies tend to

be lenders rather than borrowers. Such companies may decide to return cash to lenders

(e.g. via a share buyback.) Alternatively, they may seek to make more money on their

cash by lending it (e.g. investing in bonds and stocks.)

4.3 Borrowers

 Individuals borrow money via bankers' loans for short term needs or longer term mortgages to

help finance a house purchase.
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 Companies borrow money to aid short term or long term cash flows. They also borrow to fund

modernisation or future business expansion.

 Governments often find their spending requirements exceed their tax revenues. To make up this

difference, they need to borrow. Governments also borrow on behalf of nationalised industries,

municipalities, local authorities and other public sector bodies. In the UK, the total borrowing

requirement is often referred to as the Public sector net cash requirement (PSNCR).

 Governments borrow by issuing bonds. In the UK, the government also borrows from

individuals by offering bank accounts and Premium Bonds. Government debt seems to be

permanent. Indeed the debt seemingly expands rather than being paid off. One strategy used by

governments to reduce the value of the debt is to influence inflation.

 Municipalities and local authorities may borrow in their own name as well as receiving funding

from national governments. In the UK, this would cover an authority like Hampshire County

Council.

 Public Corporations typically include nationalised industries. These may include the postal

services, railway companies and utility companies.

 Many borrowers have difficulty raising money locally. They need to borrow internationally with

the aid of Foreign exchange markets.

5. Securities exchange

A stock exchange, securities exchange or (in Europe) bourse is a corporation or mutual

organization which provides "trading" facilities for stock brokers and traders, to trade stocks

and other securities. Stock exchanges also provide facilities for the issue and redemption of

securities as well as other financial instruments and capital events including the payment of

income and dividends. The securities traded on a stock exchange include: shares issued by

companies, unit trusts and other pooled investment products and bonds. To be able to trade

a security on a certain stock exchange, it has to be listed there. Usually there is a central

location at least for recordkeeping, but trade is less and less linked to such a physical place,

as modern markets are electronic networks, which gives them advantages of speed and cost

of transactions. Trade on an exchange is by members only. The initial offering of stocks and

bonds to investors is by definition done in the primary market and subsequent trading is

done in the secondary market. A stock exchange is often the most important component of a
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stock market. Supply and demand in stock markets is driven by various factors which, as in

all free markets, affect the price of stocks (see stock valuation).

There is usually no compulsion to issue stock via the stock exchange itself, nor must stock

be subsequently traded on the exchange. Such trading is said to be off exchange or over-the-

counter. This is the usual way that bonds are traded. Increasingly, stock exchanges are part

of a global market for securities.

6. Foreign Exchange Market

The foreign exchange (currency or FX) market is where currency trading takes place. FX

transactions typically involve one party purchasing a quantity of one currency in exchange

for paying a quantity of another. The Foreign Exchange Market that we see today started

evolving during the 1970s when worldover countries gradually switched to floating

exchange rate from their erstwhile exchange rate regime, which remained fixed as per the

Bretton Woods system till 1971.

Today, the FX market is one of the largest and most liquid financial markets in the world,

and includes trading between large banks, central banks, currency speculators, corporations,

governments, and other institutions. The average daily volume in the global forex and

related markets is continuously growing. Traditional daily turnover was reported to be over

US$ 3.2 trillion in April 2007 by the Bank for International Settlements. Since then, the

market has continued to grow. According to Euromoney's annual FX Poll, volumes grew a

further 41% between 2007 and 2008.

The purpose of FX market is to facilitate trade and investment. The need for a foreign

exchange market arises because of the presence of multifarious international currencies

such as US Dollar, Pound Sterling, etc, and the need for trading in such currencies

: Corporate Securities: Bonds And Stocks

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Identify the different types of stock and their valuation.
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 To Identify the basic characteristics and features of common stock.

 To Calculate a stock's expected rate of return.

 To Identify the basic characteristics and features of preferred stock.

 To Value preferred stock.

 To Identify the basic characteristics and features of common stock.

Definition/Overview:

Bond: A type of debt or a long-term promissory note, issued by the borrower, promising to pay

its holder a predetermined and fixed amount of interest each year.

Book value: The value of an asset as shown on a firm's balance sheet. It represents the historical

cost of the asset rather than its current market value or replacement cost.

Coupon interest rate: A bond's coupon interest rate indicates what percentage of the par value

of the bond will be paid out annually in the form of interest.

Current yield: The ratio of the annual interest payment to the bond's market price.

Debenture: Any unsecured long-term debt.

Discount bond: A bond that is selling below its par value.

Duration: A measure of how responsive a bond's price is to changing interest rates. Also, it is a

weighted average time to maturity in which the weight attached to each year is the present value

of the cash flow for that year.
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Efficient market: A market in which the values of securities at any instant in time fully reflect

all available information, which results in the market value and the intrinsic value being the

same.

Eurobonds: Bonds issued in a country different from the one in whose currency the bond is

denominatedfor instance, a bond issued in Europe or in Asia by an American company that pays

interest and principal to the lender in U.S. dollars.

Expected rate of return: The weighted average of all possible returns where the returns are

weighted by the probability that each will occur.

Indenture: The legal agreement or contract between the firm issuing the bonds and the bond

trustee who represents the bondholders.

Interest-rate risk: The variability in a bond's value (risk) caused by changing interest rates.

Intrinsic or economic value: The present value of the asset's expected future cash flows. This

value is the amount the investor considers to be a fair value, given the amount, timing, and

riskiness of future cash flows.

Junk or high-yield bonds: Bonds rated BB or below.

Liquidation value: The amount that could be realized if an asset were sold individually and not

as a part of a going concern.

Market value: The observed value for the asset in the marketplace.
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Maturity: The length of time until the bond issuer returns the par value to the bondholder and

terminates the bond.

Mortgage bond: A bond secured by a lien on real property.

Opportunity cost of funds: The next best rate of return available to the investor for a given

level of risk.

Par value of a bond: The bond's face value that is returned to the bondholder at maturity,

usually $1,000.

Premium bond: A bond that is selling above its par value.

Subordinated debenture: A debenture that is subordinated to other debentures in being paid in

the case of insolvency.

Yield to maturity: The same as the expected rate of return.

Zero and very low coupon bonds: Bonds issued at a substantial discount from their $1,000 face

value that pay no or little interest.

Key Points:

1. Issuing bonds

Bonds are issued by public authorities, credit institutions, companies and supranational

institutions in the primary markets. The most common process of issuing bonds is through
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underwriting. In underwriting, one or more securities firms or banks, forming a syndicate,

buy an entire issue of bonds from an issuer and re-sell them to investors. The security firm

takes the risk of being unable to sell on the issue to end investors. However government

bonds are instead typically auctioned.

2. Features of bonds

The most important features of a bond are:

 nominal, principal or face amount the amount on which the issuer pays interest, and which has to

be repaid at the end.

 issue price the price at which investors buy the bonds when they are first issued, which will

typically be approximately equal to the nominal amount. The net proceeds that the issuer

receives are thus the issue price, less issuance fees.

 maturity date the date on which the issuer has to repay the nominal amount. As long as all

payments have been made, the issuer has no more obligations to the bond holders after the

maturity date. The length of time until the maturity date is often referred to as the term or tenure

or maturity of a bond. The maturity can be any length of time, although debt securities with a

term of less than one year are generally designated money market instruments rather than bonds.

Most bonds have a term of up to thirty years. Some bonds have been issued with maturities of up

to one hundred years, and some even do not mature at all. In early 2005, a market developed in

euros for bonds with a maturity of fifty years. In the market for U.S. Treasury securities, there

are three groups of bond maturities:

o short term (bills): maturities up to one year;

o medium term (notes): maturities between one and ten years;

o long term (bonds): maturities greater than ten years.

 coupon the interest rate that the issuer pays to the bond holders. Usually this rate is fixed

throughout the life of the bond. It can also vary with a money market index, such as LIBOR, or it

can be even more exotic. The name coupon originates from the fact that in the past, physical

bonds were issued which had coupons attached to them. On coupon dates the bond holder would

give the coupon to a bank in exchange for the interest payment.

 The quality of the issue, which influences the probability that the bondholders will receive the

amounts promised, at the due dates. This will depend on a whole range of factors.
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o Indentures and Covenants An indenture is a formal debt agreement that establishes the terms of a

bond issue, while covenants are the clauses of such an agreement. Covenants specify the rights

of bondholders and the duties of issuers, such as actions that the issuer is obligated to perform or

is prohibited from performing. In the U.S., federal and state securities and commercial laws

apply to the enforcement of these agreements, which are construed by courts as contracts

between issuers and bondholders. The terms may be changed only with great difficulty while the

bonds are outstanding, with amendments to the governing document generally requiring approval

by a majority (or super-majority) vote of the bondholders.

o High yield bonds are bonds that are rated below investment grade by the credit rating agencies.

As these bonds are more risky than investment grade bonds, investors expect to earn a higher

yield. These bonds are also called junk bonds.

 coupon dates the dates on which the issuer pays the coupon to the bond holders. In the U.S. and

also in the U.K. and Europe, most bonds are semi-annual, which means that they pay a coupon

every six months.

 Optionality: Occasionally a bond may contain an embedded option; that is, it grants option-like

features to the holder or the issuer:

o Callability Some bonds give the issuer the right to repay the bond before the maturity date on the

call dates; see call option. These bonds are referred to as callable bonds. Most callable bonds

allow the issuer to repay the bond at par. With some bonds, the issuer has to pay a premium, the

so called call premium. This is mainly the case for high-yield bonds. These have very strict

covenants, restricting the issuer in its operations. To be free from these covenants, the issuer can

repay the bonds early, but only at a high cost.

o Putability Some bonds give the holder the right to force the issuer to repay the bond before the

maturity date on the put dates; see put option. (Note: "Putable" denotes an embedded put option;

"Puttable" denotes that it may be putted.)

o call dates and put datesthe dates on which callable and putable bonds can be redeemed early.

There are four main categories.

 A Bermudan callable has several call dates, usually coinciding with coupon dates.

 A European callable has only one call date. This is a special case of a Bermudan callable.

 An American callable can be called at any time until the maturity date.
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 A death put is an optional redemption feature on a debt instrument allowing the beneficiary of

the estate of the deceased to put (sell) the bond (back to the issuer) in the event of the

beneficiary's death or legal incapacitation. Also known as a "survivor's option".

 sinking fund provision of the corporate bond indenture requires a certain portion of the issue to

be retired periodically. The entire bond issue can be liquidated by the maturity date. If that is not

the case, then the remainder is called balloon maturity. Issuers may either pay to trustees, which

in turn call randomly selected bonds in the issue, or, alternatively, purchase bonds in open

market, then return them to trustees.

 convertible bond lets a bondholder exchange a bond to a number of shares of the issuer's

common stock.

 exchangeable bond allows for exchange to shares of a corporation other than the issuer.

3. Types of bonds

 Fixed rate bonds have a coupon that remains constant throughout the life of the bond.

 Floating rate notes (FRNs) have a coupon that is linked to an index. Common indices include:

money market indices, such as LIBOR or Euribor, and CPI (the Consumer Price Index). Coupon

examples: three month USD LIBOR + 0.20%, or twelve month CPI + 1.50%. FRN coupons reset

periodically, typically every one or three months. In theory, any Index could be used as the basis

for the coupon of an FRN, so long as the issuer and the buyer can agree to terms.

 Zero coupon bonds don't pay any interest. They are issued at a substantial discount to par value.

The bond holder receives the full principal amount on the redemption date. An example of zero

coupon bonds are Series E savings bonds issued by the U.S. government. Zero coupon bonds

may be created from fixed rate bonds by a financial institutions separating "stripping off" the

coupons from the principal. In other words, the separated coupons and the final principal

payment of the bond are allowed to trade independently. See IO (Interest Only) and PO

(Principal Only).

 Inflation linked bonds, in which the principal amount and the interest payments are indexed to

inflation. The interest rate is normally lower than for fixed rate bonds with a comparable

maturity (this position briefly reversed itself for short-term UK bonds in December 2008).

However, as the principal amount grows, the payments increase with inflation. The government

of the United Kingdom was the first to issue inflation linked Gilts in the 1980s. Treasury
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Inflation-Protected Securities (TIPS) and I-bonds are examples of inflation linked bonds issued

by the U.S. government.

 Other indexed bonds, for example equity-linked notes and bonds indexed on a business indicator

(income, added value) or on a country's GDP.

 Asset-backed securities are bonds whose interest and principal payments are backed by

underlying cash flows from other assets. Examples of asset-backed securities are mortgage-

backed securities (MBS's), collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) and collateralized debt

obligations (CDOs).

 Subordinated bonds are those that have a lower priority than other bonds of the issuer in case of

liquidation. In case of bankruptcy, there is a hierarchy of creditors. First the liquidator is paid,

then government taxes, etc. The first bond holders in line to be paid are those holding what is

called senior bonds. After they have been paid, the subordinated bond holders are paid. As a

result, the risk is higher. Therefore, subordinated bonds usually have a lower credit rating than

senior bonds. The main examples of subordinated bonds can be found in bonds issued by banks,

and asset-backed securities. The latter are often issued in tranches. The senior tranches get paid

back first, the subordinated tranches later.

 Perpetual bonds are also often called perpetuities. They have no maturity date. The most famous

of these are the UK Consols, which are also known as Treasury Annuities or Undated Treasuries.

Some of these were issued back in 1888 and still trade today, although the amounts are now

insignificant. Some ultra long-term bonds (sometimes a bond can last centuries: West Shore

Railroad issued a bond which matures in 2361 (i.e. 24th century)) are virtually perpetuities from

a financial point of view, with the current value of principal near zero.

 Bearer bond is an official certificate issued without a named holder. In other words, the person

who has the paper certificate can claim the value of the bond. Often they are registered by a

number to prevent counterfeiting, but may be traded like cash. Bearer bonds are very risky

because they can be lost or stolen. Especially after federal income tax began in the United States,

bearer bonds were seen as an opportunity to conceal income or assets. U.S. corporations stopped

issuing bearer bonds in the 1960s, the U.S. Treasury stopped in 1982, and state and local tax-

exempt bearer bonds were prohibited in 1983.
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 Registered bond is a bond whose ownership (and any subsequent purchaser) is recorded by the

issuer, or by a transfer agent. It is the alternative to a Bearer bond. Interest payments, and the

principal upon maturity, are sent to the registered owner.

 Municipal bond is a bond issued by a state, U.S. Territory, city, local government, or their

agencies. Interest income received by holders of municipal bonds is often exempt from the

federal income tax and from the income tax of the state in which they are issued, although

municipal bonds issued for certain purposes may not be tax exempt.

 Book-entry bond is a bond that does not have a paper certificate. As physically processing paper

bonds and interest coupons became more expensive, issuers (and banks that used to collect

coupon interest for depositors) have tried to discourage their use. Some book-entry bond issues

do not offer the option of a paper certificate, even to investors who prefer them.

 Lottery bond is a bond issued by a state, usually a European state. Interest is paid like a

traditional fixed rate bond, but the issuer will redeem randomly selected individual bonds within

the issue according to a schedule. Some of these redemptions will be for a higher value than the

face value of the bond.

 War bond is a bond issued by a country to fund a war.

4. Bonds issued by foreign entities

Some companies, banks, governments, and other sovereign entities may decide to issue

bonds in foreign currencies as it may appear to be more stable and predictable than their

domestic currency. Issuing bonds denominated in foreign currencies also gives issuers the

ability to access investment capital available in foreign markets. The proceeds from the

issuance of these bonds can be used by companies to break into foreign markets, or can be

converted into the issuing company's local currency to be used on existing operations.

Foreign issuer bonds can also be used to hedge foreign exchange rate risk. Some of these

bonds are called by their nicknames, such as the "samurai bond."

 Eurodollar bond, a U.S. dollar-denominated bond issued by a non-U.S. entity outside the U.S

 Kangaroo bond, an Australian dollar-denominated bond issued by a non-Australian entity in the

Australian market

 Maple bond, a Canadian Dollar-denominated bond issued by a non-Canadian entity in the

Canadian market
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 Samurai bond, a Japanese Yen-denominated bond issued by a non-Japanese entity in the

Japanese market

 Shibosai Bond is a private placement bond in Japanese market with distribution limited to

institutions and banks.

 Yankee bond, a US Dollar-denominated bond issued by a non-US entity in the US market

 Shogun bond, a non-yen-denominated bond issued in Japan by a non-Japanese institution or

government

 Bulldog bond, a pound sterling-denominated bond issued in London by a foreign institution or

government

 Matrioshka Bond, a Russian rouble-denominated bond issued in the Russian Federation by non-

Russian entities. The name derives from the famous Russian wooden dolls, Matrioshka, popular

among foreign visitors to Russia

 Arirang bond, a Korean won-denominated bond issued by a non-Korean entity in the Korean

market

 Kimchi bond, a non-Korean won-denominated bond issued by a non-Korean entity in the Korean

market.

 Formosa bond, a non-New Taiwan Dollar-denominated bond issued by a non-Taiwan entity in

the Taiwan market

 Panda bond, a Chinese renminbi-denominated bond issued by a non-China entity in the People's

Republic of China market

 State of Israel bond, a bond denominated in multiple currencies issued by the State of Israel

through the Development Corporation of Israel.

5. Trading and valuing bonds

The interest rate that the issuer of a bond must pay is influenced by a variety of factors, such

as current market interest rates, the length of the term and the creditworthiness of the issuer.

These factors are likely to change over time, so the market price of a bond will vary after it is

issued. This price is expressed as a percentage of nominal value. Bonds are not necessarily

issued at par (100% of face value, corresponding to a price of 100), but bond prices converge

to par when they approach maturity (if the market expects the maturity payment to be made
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in full and on time) as this is the price the issuer will pay to redeem the bond. At other times,

prices can be above par (bond is priced at greater than 100), which is called trading at a

premium, or below par (bond is priced at less than 100), which is called trading at a discount.

Most government bonds are denominated in units of $1000, if in the United States, or in units

of 100, if in the United Kingdom. Hence, a deep discount US bond, selling at a price of

75.26, indicates a selling price of $752.60 per bond sold. (Often, in the US, bond prices are

quoted in points and thirty-seconds of a point, rather than in decimal form.) Some short-term

bonds, such as the U.S. Treasury Bill, are always issued at a discount, and pay par amount at

maturity rather than paying coupons. This is called a discount bond.

The market price of a bond is the present value of all expected future interest and principal

payments of the bond discounted at the bond's redemption yield, or rate of return. That

relationship defines the redemption yield on the bond, which represents the current market

interest rate for bonds with similar characteristics. The yield and price of a bond are inversely

related so that when market interest rates rise, bond prices fall and vice versa. Thus the

redemption yield could be considered to be made up of two parts: the current yield (see

below) and the expected capital gain or loss: roughly the current yield plus the capital gain

(negative for loss) per year until redemption.

The market price of a bond may include the accrued interest since the last coupon date.

(Some bond markets include accrued interest in the trading price and others add it on

explicitly after trading.) The price including accrued interest is known as the "full" or "dirty

price". (See also Accrual bond.) The price excluding accrued interest is known as the "flat"

or "clean price".

The interest rate adjusted for (divided by) the current price of the bond is called the current

yield (this is the nominal yield multiplied by the par value and divided by the price).

The relationship between yield and maturity for otherwise identical bonds is called a yield

curve.
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Bonds markets, unlike stock or share markets, often do not have a centralized exchange or

trading system. Rather, in most developed bond markets such as the U.S., Japan and western

Europe, bonds trade in decentralized, dealer-based over-the-counter markets. In such a

market, market liquidity is provided by dealers and other market participants committing risk

capital to trading activity. In the bond market, when an investor buys or sells a bond, the

counterparty to the trade is almost always a bank or securities firm acting as a dealer. In some

cases, when a dealer buys a bond from an investor, the dealer carries the bond "in inventory."

The dealer's position is then subject to risks of price fluctuation. In other cases, the dealer

immediately resells the bond to another investor.

Bond markets can also differ from stock markets in that, in some markets, investors

sometimes do not pay brokerage commissions to dealers with whom they buy or sell bonds.

Rather, the dealers earn revenue by means of the spread, or difference, between the price at

which the dealer buys a bond from one investor -- the "bid" price -- and the price at which he

or she sells the same bond to another investor--the "ask" or "offer" price. The bid/offer

spread represents the total transaction cost associated with transferring a bond from one

investor to another.

6. Investing in bonds

Bonds are bought and traded mostly by institutions like pension funds, insurance companies

and banks. Most individuals who want to own bonds do so through bond funds. Still, in the

U.S., nearly 10% of all bonds outstanding are held directly by households.

Sometimes, bond markets rise (while yields fall) when stock markets fall. More relevantly,

the volatility of bonds (especially short and medium dated bonds) is lower than that of shares.

Thus bonds are generally viewed as safer investments than stocks, but this perception is only

partially correct. Bonds do suffer from less day-to-day volatility than stocks, and bonds'

interest payments are often higher than the general level of dividend payments. Bonds are

liquid it is fairly easy to sell one's bond investments, though not nearly as easy as it is to sell

stocks and the comparative certainty of a fixed interest payment twice per year is attractive.

Bondholders also enjoy a measure of legal protection: under the law of most countries, if a
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company goes bankrupt, its bondholders will often receive some money back (the recovery

amount), whereas the company's stock often ends up valueless. However, bonds can also be

risky:

 Fixed rate bonds are subject to interest rate risk, meaning that their market prices will decrease in

value when the generally prevailing interest rates rise. Since the payments are fixed, a decrease

in the market price of the bond means an increase in its yield. When the market interest rate rises,

the market price of bonds will fall, reflecting investors' ability to get a higher interest rate on

their money elsewhere perhaps by purchasing a newly issued bond that already features the

newly higher interest rate. Note that this drop in the bond's market price does not affect the

interest payments to the bondholder at all, so long-term investors who want a specific amount at

the maturity date need not worry about price swings in their bonds and do not suffer from

interest rate risk.

 Price changes in a bond will also immediately affect mutual funds that hold these bonds. If the

value of the bonds held in a trading portfolio has fallen over the day, the value of the portfolio

will also have fall. This can be damaging for professional investors such as banks, insurance

companies, pension funds and asset managers (irrespective of whether the value is immediately

"marked to market" or not). If there is any chance a holder of individual bonds may need to sell

his bonds and "cash out", interest rate risk could become a real problem. (Conversely, bonds'

market prices would increase if the prevailing interest rate were to drop, as it did from 2001

through 2003.) One way to quantify the interest rate risk on a bond is in terms of its duration.

Efforts to control this risk are called immunization or hedging.

 Bond prices can become volatile depending on the credit rating of the issuer - for instance if the

credit rating agencies like Standard & Poor's and Moody's upgrade or downgrade the credit

rating of the issuer. A downgrade will cause the market price of the bond to fall. As with interest

rate risk, this risk does not affect the bond's interest payments (provided the issuer does not

actually default), but puts at risk the market price, which affects mutual funds holding these

bonds, and holders of individual bonds who may have to sell them.

 A company's bondholders may lose much or all their money if the company goes bankrupt.

Under the laws of many countries (including the United States and Canada), bondholders are in

line to receive the proceeds of the sale of the assets of a liquidated company ahead of some other
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creditors. Bank lenders, deposit holders (in the case of a deposit taking institution such as a bank)

and trade creditors may take precedence.

 There is no guarantee of how much money will remain to repay bondholders. As an example,

after an accounting scandal and a Chapter 11 bankruptcy at the giant telecommunications

company Worldcom, in 2004 its bondholders ended up being paid 35.7 cents on the dollar. In a

bankruptcy involving reorganization or recapitalization, as opposed to liquidation, bondholders

may end up having the value of their bonds reduced, often through an exchange for a smaller

number of newly issued bonds.

 Some bonds are callable, meaning that even though the company has agreed to make payments

plus interest towards the debt for a certain period of time, the company can choose to pay off the

bond early. This creates reinvestment risk, meaning the investor is forced to find a new place for

his money, and the investor might not be able to find as good a deal, especially because this

usually happens when interest rates are falling.

7. Bond indices

A number of bond indices exist for the purposes of managing portfolios and measuring

performance, similar to the S&P 500 or Russell Indexes for stocks. The most common

American benchmarks are the (ex) Lehman Aggregate, Citigroup BIG and Merrill Lynch

Domestic Master. Most indices are parts of families of broader indices that can be used to

measure global bond portfolios, or may be further subdivided by maturity and/or sector for

managing specialized portfolios.

8. Types of stock

Stock typically takes the form of shares of either common stock or preferred stock. As a unit

of ownership, common stock typically carries voting rights that can be exercised in corporate

decisions. Preferred stock differs from common stock in that it typically does not carry

voting rights but is legally entitled to receive a certain level of dividend payments before any

dividends can be issued to other shareholders. Convertible preferred stock is preferred stock

that includes an option for the holder to convert the preferred shares into a fixed number of

common shares, usually anytime after a predetermined date. Shares of such stock are called

"convertible preferred shares" (or "convertible preference shares" in the UK)
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Although there is a great deal of commonality between the stocks of different companies,

each new equity issue can have legal clauses attached to it that make it dynamically different

from the more general cases. Some shares of common stock may be issued without the

typical voting rights being included, for instance, or some shares may have special rights

unique to them and issued only to certain parties. Note that not all equity shares are the same.

9. Preferred Stocks

Preferred stock, also called preferred shares or preference shares, is typically a higher

ranking stock than voting shares, and its terms are negotiated between the corporation and

the investor.

Preferred stock usually carries no voting rights, but may carry superior priority over common

stock in the payment of dividends and upon liquidation. Preferred stock may carry a dividend

that is paid out prior to any dividends to common stock holders. Preferred stock may have a

convertibility feature into common stock. Preferred stockholders will be paid out in assets

before common stockholders and after debt holders in bankruptcy. Terms of the preferred

stock are stated in a "Certificate of Designation".

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Discuss the components of the risk-free interest

 To Explain why the risk-free interest rate changes over time.

 To Explain why the risk-free rate of interest varies among possible maturities (investment

horizons).

 To Explain why the returns required on risky assets change over time.
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Definition/Overview:

Interest: is a fee paid borrowed assets. Assets that are sometimes lent with interest include

money, shares, consumer goods through hire purchase, major assets such as aircraft, and even

entire factories in finance lease arrangements. The interest is calculated upon the value of the

assets in the same manner as upon money. Interest can be thought of as "rent on money". For

example, if you want to borrow money from the bank, there is a certain rate you have to pay

according to how much you want loaned to you.

Interest is compensation to the lender for foregoing other useful investments that could have

been made with the loaned asset. These foregone investments are known as the opportunity cost.

Instead of the lender using the assets directly, they are advanced to the borrower. The borrower

then enjoys the benefit of using the assets ahead of the effort required to obtain them, while the

lender enjoys the benefit of the fee paid by the borrower for the privilege. The amount lent, or

the value of the assets lent, is called the principal. This principal value is held by the borrower on

credit. Interest is therefore the price of credit, not the price of money as it is commonly believed

to be. The percentage of the principal that is paid as a fee (the interest), over a certain period of

time, is called the interest rate.

Risk-Free Interest Rate: The risk-free interest rate is the interest rate that it is assumed can be

obtained by investing in financial instruments with no default risk. However, the financial

instrument can carry other types of risk, e.g. market risk (the risk of changes in market interest

rates), liquidity risk (the risk of being unable to sell the instrument for cash at short notice

without significant costs) etc.

Key Points:

1. Risk-free assets

Though a truly risk-free asset exists only in theory, in practice most professionals and

academics use short-dated government bonds of the currency in question. For USD

investments, usually US Treasury bills are used, while a common choice for EUR

investments are German government bills or Euribor rates. The mean real interest rate of US
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treasury bills during the 20th century was 0.9% p.a. (Corresponding figures for Germany are

inapplicable due to hyperinflation during the 1920s.)

These securities are considered to be risk-free because the likelihood of these governments

defaulting is extremely low, and because the short maturity of the bill protects the investor

from interest-rate risk that is present in all fixed rate bonds (if interest rates go up soon after

the bill is purchased, the investor will miss out on a fairly small amount of interest before the

bill matures and can be reinvested at the new interest rate).

Since this interest rate can be obtained with no risk, it is implied that any additional risk

taken by an investor should be rewarded with an interest rate higher than the risk-free rate

(on an after-tax basis, which may be achieved with preferential tax treatment; some local

government US bonds give below the risk-free rate).

2. Application

The risk-free interest rate is thus of significant importance to Modern Portfolio Theory in

general, and is an important assumption for rational pricing. It is also a required input in

financial calculations, such as the Black-Scholes formula for pricing stock options. Note that

some finance and economic theory assumes that market participants can borrow at the risk

free rate; in practice, of course, very few borrowers have access to finance at the risk free

rate.

3. Why risk-free?

One explanation for the assumption that no default risk exists is due to the nature of

government debt. For a fiat currency, the government retains the theoretical capacity to print

as much of that currency as will be required to pay its own debts (in that currency). In this

case, true default is theoretically impossible: owners of government debt can always be paid,

but with money that may have substantially lower value. Rather than reflecting the default

risk of the government, the risk-free interest rate, therefore, reflects the likelihood that the

government will print money to pay its debts, thereby debasing the currency. Note that this

does not apply to currencies such as the Euro where no individual government has the

authority to print currency. Of course, many countries have other measures and institutions
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(such as theoretically independent central banks) to reduce the likelihood of such an

occurrence.

An alternative interpretation is that, while no investment is truly free of risk, scenarios in

which a major government with a long track record of stability defaults on its obligations are

so far outside what is known that one cannot make quantitative statements about their

chances of happening, and therefore it is simply not feasible to include them in financial

planning. A German investor living circa 1904 trying to decide whether to purchase long-

term bonds issued by the German government could scarcely have been able to anticipate a

World War followed by hyperinflation.

: Time Value Of Money

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Explain the mechanics of compounding: how money grows over time when it is invested.

 To Determine the future or present value of a sum when there are nonannual compounding

periods.

 To Discuss the relationship between compounding (future value) and bringing money back to the

present (present value).

 To Define an ordinary annuity and calculate its compound or future value.

 To Differentiate between an ordinary annuity and an annuity due, and determine the future and

present value of an annuity due.

 To Work with annuities and perpetuities.

 To Calculate the annual percentage yield or effective annual rate of interest and then explain how

it differs from the nominal or stated interest rate.
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Definition/Overview:

Amortized loan: A loan paid off in equal installments.

Annual percentage yield (APY) or effective annual rate (EAR): The annual compound rate

that produces the same return as the nominal or quoted rate.

Annuity: A series of equal dollar payments for a specified number of years.

Annuity due: An annuity in which the payments occur at the beginning of each period.

Compound annuity: Depositing an equal sum of money at the end of each year for a certain

number of years and allowing it to grow.

Compound interest: Interest that occurs when interest paid on the investment during the first

period is added to the principal; then, during the second period, interest is earned on this new

sum.

Future-value interest factor (FVIF i,n ): The value (1 + i)n used as a multiplier to calculate an

amount's future value.

Future-value interest factor for an annuity (FVIFA i,n ): The value used as a multiplier to

calculate the future value of an annuity.

Loan amortization schedule: A breakdown of loan payments into interest and principal

payments.

Nominal or quoted: The stated rate of interest on the contract.

Ordinary annuity: An annuity in which the payments occur at the end of each period.
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Perpetuity: An annuity that continues forever.

Present value: The current value of a future sum.

Present-value interest factor (PVIF i,n ): The value [1/(1 + i)n] used as a multiplier to

calculate an amount's present value.

Present-value interest factor for an annuity (PVIFA i,n ): The value used as a multiplier to

calculate the present value of an annuity.

Key Points:

1. Time value of Money

The concepts of present and future value hinge upon the premise that an investor prefers to

receive a payment of a fixed amount of money today, rather than an equal amount in the

future, all else being equal. In particular, the time value of money represents the interest one

might earn on a payment received today, if held, earning interest, until that future date.

All of the standard calculations derive from the most basic algebraic expression for the

present value of a future sum, "discounted" to the present by an amount equal to the time

value of money. For example, a sum of FV to be received in one year is discounted (at the

rate of interest r) to give a sum of PV at present: PV = FV rPV = FV/(1+r).

Some standard calculations based on the time value of money are:

 Present Value (PV) of an amount that will be received in the future.

 Present Value of a Annuity (PVA) is the present value of a stream of (equally-sized) future

payments, such as a mortgage.

 Present Value of a Perpetuity is the value of a regular stream of payments that lasts "forever", or

at least indefinitely.

 Future Value (FV) of an amount invested (such as in a deposit account) now at a given rate of

interest.
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 Future Value of an Annuity (FVA) is the future value of a stream of payments (annuity),

assuming the payments are invested at a given rate of interest.

2. Calculations

There are several basic equations that represent the equalities listed above. The solutions may

be found using (in most cases) the formulas, a financial calculator or a spreadsheet. The

formulas are programmed into most financial calculators and several spreadsheet functions

(such as PV, FV, RATE, NPER, and PMT).

For any of the equations below, the formulae may also be rearranged to determine one of the

other unknowns. In the case of the standard annuity formula, however, there is no closed-

form algebraic solution for the interest rate (although financial calculators and spreadsheet

programs can readily determine solutions through rapid trial and error algorithms).

These equations are frequently combined for particular uses. For example, bonds can be

readily priced using these equations. A typical coupon bond is composed of two types of

payments: a stream of coupon payments similar to an annuity, and a lump-sum return of

capital at the end of the bond's maturity - that is, a future payment. The two formulas can be

combined to determine the present value of the bond.

An important note is that the interest rate i is the interest rate for the relevant period. For an

annuity that makes one payment per year, i will be the annual interest rate. For an income or

payment stream with a different payment schedule, the interest rate must be converted into

the relevant periodic interest rate, For example, a monthly rate for a mortgage with monthly

payments requires that the interest rate be divided by 12 (see the example below). See

compound interest for details on converting between different periodic interest rates.

The rate of return in the calculations can be either the variable solved for, or a predefined

variable that measures a discount rate, interest, inflation, rate of return, cost of equity, cost of

debt or any number of other analogous concepts. The choice of the appropriate rate is critical

to the exercise, and the use of an incorrect discount rate will make the results meaningless.
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For calculations involving annuities, you must decide whether the payments are made at the

end of each period (known as an ordinary annuity), or at the beginning of each period

(known as an annuity due). If you are using a financial calculator or a spreadsheet, you can

usually set it for either calculation. The following formulas are for an ordinary annuity. If

you want the answer for the Present Value of an annuity due simply multiplies the PV of an

ordinary annuity by (1 + i).

3. Formulae

3.1 Present value of a future sum

The present value formula is the core formula for the time value of money; each of the

other formulae is derived from this formula. For example, the annuity formula is the

sum of a series of present value calculations.

The present value (PV) formula has four variables, each of which can be solved for:

o PV is the value at time=0

o FV is the value at time=n

o i is the rate at which the amount will be compounded each period

o n is the number of periods (not necessarily an integer)

The cumulative present value of future cash flows can be calculated by summing the

contributions of FVt, the value of cash flow at time=t

Note that this series can be summed for a given value of n, or when n is . This is a

very general formula, which leads to several important special cases given below.
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3.2 Present value of an annuity for n payment periods

In this case the cash flow values remain the same throughout the n periods. The present

value of an annuity (PVA) formula has four variables, each of which can be solved for:

o PV(A) the value of the annuity at time=0

o A the value of the individual payments in each compounding period

o i equals the interest rate that would be compounded for each period of time

o n is the number of payment periods.

To get the PV of an annuity due, multiply the above equation by (1 + i).

3.3 Present value of a growing annuity

In this case the each cash flow grows by a factor of (1+g). Similar to the formula for an

annuity, the present value of a growing annuity (PVGA) uses the same variables with

the addition of g as the rate of growth of the annuity (A is the annuity payment in the

first period). This is a calculation that is rarely provided for on financial calculators.

To get the PV of a growing annuity due, multiply the above equation by (1 + i).

3.4 Present value of a perpetuity

When , the PV of a perpetuity (a perpetual annuity) formula becomes simple

division.

When this is an increasing perpetuity, this i becomes i 1+i=(1+i)/(1+g) i=(i-g)/(1+g)

so A/i =A x (1+g)/(i-g) not (A/(i-g))

3.5 Present value of a growing perpetuity

When the perpetual annuity payment grows at a fixed rate (g) the value is theoretically

determined according to the following formula. In practice, there are few securities
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with precisely these characteristics, and the application of this valuation approach is

subject to various qualifications and modifications. Most importantly, it is rare to find

a growing perpetual annuity with fixed rates of growth and true perpetual cash flow

generation. Despite these qualifications, the general approach may be used in

valuations of real estate, equities, and other assets.

This is the well known Gordon Growth model used for stock valuation.

3.6 Future value of a present sum

The future value (FV) formula is similar and uses the same variables.

3.7 Future value of an annuity

The future value of an annuity (FVA) formula has four variables, each of which can be

solved for:

o FV(A), the value of the annuity at time = n

o A, the value of the individual payments in each compounding period

o i, the interest rate that would be compounded for each period of time

o n, the number of payment periods

3.8 Future value of a growing annuity

The future value of a growing annuity (FVA) formula has five variables, each of which

can be solved for:

o FV(A), the value of the annuity at time = n

o A, the value of initial payment at time 0

o i, the interest rate that would be compounded for each period of time
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o g, the growing rate that would be compounded for each period of time

o n, the number of payment periods

Where i <> g :

Where i = g :

4. Derivations

4.1 Annuity derivation

The formula for the present value of a regular stream of future payments (an annuity) is

derived from a sum of the formula for future value of a single future payment, as below,

where C is the payment amount and n the period.

A single payment C at future time m has the following future value at future time n:

Summing over all payments from time 1 to time n, then reversing the order of terms and

substituting k = n − m:

Note that this is a geometric series, with the initial value being a = C, the multiplicative

factor being 1 + i, with n terms. Applying the formula for geometric series, we get

The present value of the annuity (PVA) is obtained by simply dividing by (1 + i)n:
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Another simple and intuitive way to derive the future value of an annuity is to consider

an endowment, whose interest is paid as the annuity, and whose principal remains

constant. The principal of this hypothetical endowment can be computed as that whose

interest equals the annuity payment amount:

Principal = C / i + goal

Note that no money enters or leaves the combined system of endowment principal +

accumulated annuity payments, and thus the future value of this system can be

computed simply via the future value formula:

FV = PV(1 + i)n

Initially, before any payments, the present value of the system is just the endowment

principal (PV = C / i). At the end, the future value is the endowment principal (which is

the same) plus the future value of the total annuity payments (FV = C / i + FVA).

Plugging this back into the equation:

4.2 Perpetuity derivation

Without showing the formal derivation here, the perpetuity formula is derived from the

annuity formula. Specifically, the term:
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can be seen to approach the value of 1 as n grows larger. At infinity, it is equal to 1,

leaving as the only term remaining.

5. Time value of money formulas with continuous compounding

Rates are sometimes converted into the continuous compound interest rate equivalent

because the continuous equivalent is more convenient (for example, more easily

differentiated). Each of the formul above may be restated in their continuous equivalents. For

example, the present value at time 0 of a future payment at time t can be restated in the

following way, where e is the base of the natural logarithm and r is the continuously

compounded rate:

See below for formulaic equivalents of the time value of money formul with continuous

compounding.

o Present value of an annuity

o Present value of a perpetuity

o Present value of a growing annuity

o Present value of a growing perpetuity

o Present value of an annuity with continuous payments
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In Section 2 of this course you will cover these topics:
Risk And Return

Valuation

Financial Statements And Analysis

The Firm And Its Financial Environment

Capital Budgeting: Cash Flow Principles

You may take as much time as you want to complete the topic coverd in section 2.
There is no time limit to finish any Section, However you must finish All Sections before

semester end date.

If you want to continue remaining courses later, you may save the course and leave.
You can continue later as per your convenience and this course will be avalible in your

area to save and continue later.

: Risk And Return

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Compute a company's profits as reflected by an income statement.

 To Determine a firm's accounting book value, as presented in a balance sheet.

 To Compute a company's taxes.

 Describe the relationship between the average returns that investors have earned and riskiness of

these returns.

 Define and measure the expected rate of return of an individual investment

 Define and measure the riskiness of an individual investment.

 Explain how diversifying investments affects the riskiness and expected rate of return of a

portfolio or combination of assets.

 Measure the market risk of an individual asset.

 Calculate the market risk of a portfolio of investments.

 Explain the relationship between an investor's required rate of return on an investment and the

riskiness of the investment.
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Definition/Overview:

Asset allocation: Identifying and selecting the asset classes appropriate for a specific investment

portfolio and determining the proportions of these assets within the given portfolio.

Beta: A measure of the relationship between an investment's returns and the market's returns.

This is a measure of the investment's nondiversifiable risk.

Capital asset pricing model (CAPM): An equation stating that the expected rate of return on an

investment is a function of (1) the risk-free rate, (2) the investment's systematic risk, and (3) the

expected risk premium for the market portfolio of all risky securities.

Characteristic line: The line of "best fit" through a series of returns for a firm's stock relative to

the market returns. The slope of the line, frequently called beta, represents the average

movement of the firm's stock returns in response to a movement in the market's returns.

Expected rate of return: The weighted average of all possible returns where the returns are

weighted by the probability that each will occur.

Firm-specific risk or company-unique risk (diversifiable risk or unsystematic risk): The

portion of the variation in investment returns that can be eliminated through investor

diversification. This diversifiable risk is the result of factors that are unique to the particular firm.

Investor's required rate of return: The minimum rate of return necessary to attract an investor

to purchase or hold a security.

Market-related risk (nondiversifiable risk or systematic risk): The portion of variations in

investment returns that cannot be eliminated through investor diversification. This variation

results from factors that affect all stocks.
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Opportunity cost of funds: The next best rate of return available to the investor for a given

level of risk.

Portfolio beta: The relationship between a portfolio's returns and the market's different returns.

It is a measure of the portfolio's nondiversifiable risk.

Real rate of interest: The nominal rate of interest less the expected rate of inflation over the

maturity of the fixedincome security. This represents the expected increase in actual purchasing

power to the investor.

Risk: The likely variability associated with expected revenue or income streams.

Risk-free or riskless rate of return: The rate of return on risk-free investments. The interest

rate on short-term U.S. government securities is commonly used to measure this rate.

Risk premium: The additional rate of return we expect to earn above the riskfree rate for

assuming risk.

Security market line: The return line that reflects the attitudes of investors regarding the

minimal acceptable return for a given level of systematic risk.

Standard deviation: A measure of the spread or dispersion about the mean of a probability

distribution. We calculate it by squaring the difference between each outcome and its expected

value, weighting each squared difference by its associated probability, summing over all possible

outcomes, and taking the square root of this sum.

Term structure of interest rates (yield to maturity): Relationship between a debt security's

rate of return and the length of time until the debt matures
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Key Points:

1. Financial Risk

In finance, risk is the probability that an investment's actual return will be different than

expected. This includes the possibility of losing some or all of the original investment. Some

regard a calculation of the standard deviation of the historical returns or average returns of a

specific investment as providing some historical measure of risk. Financial risk may market-

dependent, determined by numerous market factors, or operational, resulting from fraudulent

behavior (Example of Bernard Madoff).

In finance, risk has no one definition, but some theorists, notably Ron Dembo, have defined

quite general methods to assess risk as an expected after-the-fact level of regret. Such

methods have been uniquely successful in limiting interest rate risk in financial markets.

Financial markets are considered to be a proving ground for general methods of risk

assessment. However, these methods are also hard to understand. The mathematical

difficulties interfere with other social goods such as disclosure, valuation and transparency.

In particular, it is not always obvious if such financial instruments are "hedging"

(purchasing/selling a financial instrument specifically to reduce or cancel out the risk in

another investment) or "speculation" (increasing measurable risk and exposing the investor to

catastrophic loss in pursuit of very high windfalls that increase expected value).

As regret measures rarely reflect actual human risk-aversion, it is difficult to determine if the

outcomes of such transactions will be satisfactory. Risk seeking describes an individual

whose utility function's second derivative is positive. Such an individual would willingly

(actually pay a premium to) assume all risk in the economy and is hence not likely to exist.

In financial markets, one may need to measure credit risk, information timing and source

risk, probability model risk, and legal risk if there are regulatory or civil actions taken as a

result of some "investor's regret".

A fundamental idea in finance is the relationship between risk and return. The greater the

potential return one might seek, the greater the risk that one generally assumes. A free market
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reflects this principle in the pricing of an instrument: strong demand for a safer instrument

drives its price higher (and its return proportionately lower), while weak demand for a riskier

instrument drives its price lower (and its potential return thereby higher).

"For example, a US Treasury bond is considered to be one of the safest investments and,

when compared to a corporate bond, provides a lower rate of return. The reason for this is

that a corporation is much more likely to go bankrupt than the U.S. government. Because the

risk of investing in a corporate bond is higher, investors are offered a higher rate of return."

The most popular, and also the most vilified lately risk measurement is Value-at-Risk (VaR) .

There are different types of VaR - Long Term VaR, Marginal VaR, Factor VaR and Shock

VaR. The latter is used in measuring risk during the extreme market stress conditions. Shock

VaR is the brain child of the French mathematician and risk expert Ingmar Adlerberg .

Adlerberg developed Shock VaR on the eve of the credit crunch 2007/2008. Shock VaR was

able to forecast fairly accurately the global market fluctuations during the October/November

2008 market meltdown.

2. Rate of Return

In finance, rate of return (ROR), also known as return on investment (ROI), rate of profit or

sometimes just return, is the ratio of money gained or lost (realized or unrealized) on an

investment relative to the amount of money invested. The amount of money gained or lost

may be referred to as interest, profit/loss, gain/loss, or net income/loss. The money invested

may be referred to as the asset, capital, principal, or the cost basis of the investment. ROI is

usually expressed as a percentage rather than a fraction.

ROI does not indicate how long an investment is held. However, ROI is most often stated as

an annual or annualized rate of return, and it is most often stated for a calendar or fiscal year.

In this article, "ROI" indicates an annual or annualized rate of return, unless otherwise

noted.

ROI can be used to compare returns on investments where the moneys gained or lost are not

easily compared using monetary values. For instance, a $1,000 investment that earns $50 in

interest generates more cash than a $100 investment that earns $20 in interest, but the $100

investment earns a higher return on investment.
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 $50/$1,000 = 5% ROI

 $20/$100 = 20% ROI

The rate of return can take on any value greater than or equal to -100% -- a positive value

corresponds to capital growth, a negative value corresponds to capital decay, and a value of

0% corresponds to no change.

3. CAPM

In finance, the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM) is used to determine a theoretically

appropriate required rate of return of an asset, if that asset is to be added to an already well-

diversified portfolio, given that asset's non-diversifiable risk. The model takes into account

the asset's sensitivity to non-diversifiable risk (also known as systemic risk or market risk),

often represented by the quantity beta (β) in the financial industry, as well as the expected

return of the market and the expected return of a theoretical risk-free asset.

The model was introduced by Jack Treynor, William Sharpe, John Lintner and Jan Mossin

independently, building on the earlier work of Harry Markowitz on diversification and

modern portfolio theory. Sharpe received the Nobel Memorial Prize in Economics (jointly

with Markowitz and Merton Miller) for this contribution to the field of financial economics.

3.1 The formula

The CAPM is a model for pricing an individual security or a portfolio. For individual

securities, we made use of the security market line (SML) and its relation to expected

return and systemic risk (beta) to show how the market must price individual securities

in relation to their security risk class. The SML enables us to calculate the reward-to-

risk ratio for any security in relation to that of the overall market. Therefore, when the

expected rate of return for any security is deflated by its beta coefficient, the reward-

to-risk ratio for any individual security in the market is equal to the market reward-to-

risk ratio, thus:

,
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The market reward-to-risk ratio is effectively the market risk premium and by

rearranging the above equation and solving for E(Ri), we obtain the Capital Asset

Pricing Model (CAPM).

Where:

 is the expected return on the capital asset

 is the risk-free rate of interest such as interest arising from government bonds

 (the beta coefficient) is the sensitivity of the asset returns to market returns, or also

,

 is the expected return of the market

 is sometimes known as the market premium or risk premium (the difference

between the expected market rate of return and the risk-free rate of return).

Restated, in terms of risk premium, we find that:

which states that the individual risk premium equals the market premium times beta.

3.2 Asset pricing

Once the expected return, E(Ri), is calculated using CAPM, the future cash flows of the

asset can be discounted to their present value using this rate (E(Ri)), to establish the

correct price for the asset.

In theory, therefore, an asset is correctly priced when its observed price is the same as its

value calculated using the CAPM derived discount rate. If the observed price is higher

than the valuation, then the asset is overvalued (and undervalued when the observed price

is below the CAPM valuation).

Alternatively, one can "solve for the discount rate" for the observed price given a

particular valuation model and compare that discount rate with the CAPM rate. If the
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discount rate in the model is lower than the CAPM rate then the asset is overvalued (and

undervalued for a too high discount rate).

3.3 Asset-specific required return

The CAPM returns the asset-appropriate required return or discount rate - i.e. the rate at

which future cash flows produced by the asset should be discounted given that asset's

relative riskiness. Betas exceeding one signify more than average "riskiness"; betas below

one indicate lower than average. Thus a more risky stock will have a higher beta and will

be discounted at a higher rate; less sensitive stocks will have lower betas and be

discounted at a lower rate. Given the accepted concave utility function, the CAPM is

consistent with intuition - investors (should) require a higher return for holding a more

risky asset.

Since beta reflects asset-specific sensitivity to non-diversifiable, i.e. market risk, the

market as a whole, by definition, has a beta of one. Stock market indices are frequently

used as local proxies for the market - and in that case (by definition) have a beta of one.

An investor in a large, diversified portfolio (such as a mutual fund) therefore expects

performance in line with the market.

: Valuation

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Understand the importance of valuation in Finance.

 To understand the main valuation methods.
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Definition/Overview:

Valuation: In finance, valuation is the process of estimating the potential market value of a

financial asset or liability. Valuations can be done on assets (for example, investments in

marketable securities such as stocks, options, business enterprises, or intangible assets such as

patents and trademarks) or on liabilities (e.g., Bonds issued by a company). Valuations are

required in many contexts including investment analysis, capital budgeting, merger and

acquisition transactions, financial reporting, taxable events to determine the proper tax liability,

and in litigation.

Key Points:

1. Valuation overview

Valuation of financial assets is done using one or more of these types of models:

 Relative value models determine the value based on the market prices of similar assets.

 Absolute value models determine the value by estimating the expected future earnings from

owning the asset discounted to their present value.

 Option pricing models are used for certain types of financial assets (e.g., warrants, put options,

call options, employee stock options, investments with embedded options such as a callable

bond) and are a complex present value model. The most common option pricing models are the

Black-Scholes-Merton models and lattice models.

Common terms for the value of an asset or liability are fair market value, fair value, and

intrinsic value. The meanings of these terms differ. The most common term in use is

probably fair market value defined as the cash price an item would sell for between a willing

buyer and willing seller assuming they both have knowledge of the relevant facts and they

have no compulsion to buy or sell. Fair value is used in different contexts and has multiple

meanings. Some people use the term to mean the same thing as fair market value.

Furthermore, fair value is also used in accounting and law. In accounting, the term is used as

part of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in financial reporting. In law, fair

value is often used in state statutes for shareholder rights. In both cases, fair value is defined

in the accounting literature or the law, respectively. Fair value in the accounting and legal

contexts may be different from each other and may also be different from fair market value.
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Another term--intrinsic value--is the "true" value of an asset regardless of the asset's market

price. For instance, when an analyst believes a stock's intrinsic value is greater than its

market price, the analyst makes a "buy" recommendation and vice versa. Moreover, an asset's

intrinsic value may be subject to personal opinion and vary among analysts.

2. Business valuation

Businesses or fractional interests in businesses may be valued for various purposes such as

mergers and acquisitions, sale of securities, and taxable events. An accurate valuation of

privately owned companies largely depends on the reliability of the firm's historic financial

information. Public company financial statements are audited by Certified Public

Accountants (US), Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) or Chartered Accountants (UK

and Canada) and overseen by a government regulator. Alternatively, private firms do not

have government oversight--unless operating in a regulated industry--and are usually not

required to have their financial statements audited. Moreover, managers of private firms

often prepare their financial statements to minimize profits and, therefore, taxes.

Alternatively, managers of public firms tend to want higher profits to increase their stock

price. Therefore, a firm's historic financial information may not be accurate and can lead to

over- and undervaluation. In an acquisition, a buyer often performs due diligence to verify

the seller's information. Financial statements of private firms generally require recasting or

normalization adjustments to prepare for business valuation.

Financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

(GAAP) often show the values of assets at their historic costs rather than at their current

market values. For instance, a firm's balance sheet will usually show the value of land it

owns at what the firm paid for it rather than at its current market value. But under GAAP

requirements, a firm must show the values of some types of assets--securities held for sale,

for instance--at their market values rather than at cost. When a firm is required to show some

of its assets at market value, some call this process "mark-to-market." But reporting asset

values on financial statements at market values gives managers ample opportunity to slant

asset values upward--to artificially increase profits and stock prices. Managers may be

motivated to alter earnings upward so they can earn bonuses. Despite the risk of manager
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bias, investors and creditors prefer to know the market values of a firm's assets--rather than

their costs--because the current values give them better information to make decisions.

3. Main business valuation methods

3.1 Discounted cash flows method

This method estimates the value of an asset based on its expected future cash flows,

which are discounted to the present (i.e., the present value). This concept of discounting

future monies is commonly known as the time value of money. For instance, an asset that

matures and pays $1 in one year is worth less than $1 today. The size of the discount is

based on an opportunity cost of capital and it is expressed as a percentage. Some people

call this percentage a discount rate.

The idea of opportunity cost can be illustrated in an example. A person with only $100 to

invest can make just one $100 investment even when presented with two or more

investment choices. If this person is later offered an alternative investment choice, the

investor has lost the opportunity to make that second investment since the $100 is spent

to buy the first opportunity. This example illustrates that money is limited and people

make choices in how to spend it. By making a choice, they give up other opportunities.

In finance theory, the amount of the opportunity cost is based on a relation between the

risk and return of some sort of investment. Classic economic theory maintains that people

are rational and adverse to risk. They, therefore, need an incentive to accept risk. The

incentive in finance comes in the form of higher expected returns after buying a risky

asset. In other words, the more risky the investment, the more return investors want from

that investment. Using the same example as above, assume the first investment

opportunity is a government bond that will pay interest of 5% per year and the principle

and interest payments are guaranteed by the government. Alternatively, the second

investment opportunity is a bond issued by small company and that bond also pays

annual interest of 5%. If given a choice between the two bonds, virtually all investors

would buy the government bond rather than the small-firm bond because the first is less

risky while paying the same interest rate as the riskier second bond. In this case, an

investor has no incentive to buy the riskier second bond. Furthermore, in order to attract
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capital from investors, the small firm issuing the second bond must pay an interest rate

higher than 5% that the government bond pays. Otherwise, no investor is likely to buy

that bond and, therefore, the firm will be unable to raise capital. But by offering to pay an

interest rate more than than 5%. the firm gives investors an incentive to buy a riskier

bond.

For a valuation using the discounted cash flow method, one first estimates the future cash

flows from the investment and then estimates a reasonable discount rate after considering

the riskiness of those cash flows and interest rates in the capital markets. Next, one makes

a calculation to compute the present value of the future cash flows.

3.2 Guideline companies method

This method determines the value of a firm by observing the prices of similar companies

(guideline companies) that sold in the market. Those sales could be shares of stock or

sales of entire firms. The observed prices serve as valuation benchmarks. From the

prices, one calculates price multiples such as the price-to-earnings or price-to-book

value ratios. Next, one or more price multiples are used to value the firm. For example,

the average price-to-earnings multiple of the guideline companies is applied to the

subject firm's earnings to estimate its value.

Many price multiples can be calculated. Most are based on a financial statement element

such as a firm's earnings (price-to-earnings) or book value (price-to-book value) but

multiples can be based on other factors such as price-per-subscriber.

4. Usage

In finance, valuation analysis is required for many reasons including tax assessment, wills

and estates, divorce settlements, business analysis, and basic bookkeeping and accounting.

Since the value of things fluctuates over time, valuations are as of a specific date e.g., the end

of the accounting quarter or year. They may alternatively be mark-to-market estimates of the

current value of assets or liabilities as of this minute or this day for the purposes of managing

portfolios and associated financial risk (for example, within large financial firms including

investment banks and stockbrokers).
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Some balance sheet items are much easier to value than others. Publicly traded stocks and

bonds have prices that are quoted frequently and readily available. Other assets are harder to

value. For instance, private firms that have no frequently quoted price. Additionally, financial

instruments that have prices that are partly dependent on theoretical models of one kind or

another are difficult to value. For example, options are generally valued using the Black-

Scholes model while the liabilities of life assurance firms are valued using the theory of

present value. Intangible business assets, like goodwill and intellectual property, are open to

a wide range of value interpretations.

It is possible and conventional for financial professionals to make their own estimates of the

valuations of assets or liabilities that they are interested in. Their calculations are of various

kinds including analyses of companies that focus on price-to-book, price-to-earnings, price-

to-cashflow and present value calculations, and analyses of bonds that focus on credit ratings,

assessments of default risk, risk premia and levels of real interest rates. All of these

approaches may be thought of as creating estimates of value that compete for credibility with

the prevailing share or bond prices, where applicable, and may or may not result in buying or

selling by market participants. Where the valuation is for the purpose of a merger or

acquisition the respective businesses make available further detailed financial information,

usually on the completion of a Non-disclosure agreement.

It is very important to note that valuation is more an art than a science because it requires

judgement:

 There are very different situations and purposes in which you value an asset (e.g. company in

distress, tax purposes, mergers & acquisitions, quarterly reporting). In turn this requires different

methods or a different interpretation of the same method each time.

 All valuation models and methods have their limitations (e.g., mathematical, complexity,

simplicity, comparability) and could be widely criticized. As a general rule the valuation models

are most useful when you use the same valuation method as the "partner" you are interacting

with. Mostly the method used is industry or purpose specific;

 The quality of some of the input data may vary widely

 In all valuation models there are a great number of assumptions that need to be made and things

might not turn out the way you expect. Your best way out of that is to be able to explain and

stand for each assumption you make;
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When a valuation is prepared all assumptions should be clearly stated, especially the context.

It is improper, for example, to value a going concern, based on an assumption that it is going

out of business, since then only a salvage value remains.

5. Valuation of a distressed company

Additional adjustments to a valuation approach, whether it is market-, income- or asset-

based, may be necessary in some instances. These involve:

 excess or restricted cash

 other non-operating assets and liabilities

 lack of marketability discount

 control premium or lack of control discount

 above or below market leases

 excess salaries in the case of private companies.

There are other adjustments to the financial statements that have to be made when valuing a

distressed company. Andrew Miller identifies typical adjustments used to recast the financial

statements that include:

 working capital adjustment

 deferred capital expeditures

 cost of goods sold adjustment

 non-recurring professional fees and costs

 certain non-operating income/expense items.

6. Valuation of intangible assets

Valuation models can be used to value intangible assets such as patents, copyrights, software,

trade secrets, and customer relationships. Since few sales of benchmark intangible assets can

ever be observed, one often values these sorts of assets using either a present value model or

estimating the costs to recreate it. Regardless of the method, the process is often time

consuming and costly.

Valuations of intangible assets are often necessary for financial reporting and intellectual

property transactions.
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Stock markets give indirectly an estimate of a corporation's intangible asset value. It can be

reckoned as the difference between its market capitalisation and its book value (by including

only hard assets in it).

There have been several new tools developed recently aiding in the valuation of intellectual

property. The 25% Rule, Monte Carlo Analysis, and Derivative Revenue Model (based on

license revenue) are just a few of these tools. Also, traditional methods such as Net Present

Value, Internal Rate of Return, and Discounted Cash Flow can also be used. However, these

do not take into account the "book value", or "pre-revenue" asset value of non income

producing intellectual property. With the negotiability and transferability of intellectual

property being liberalized by court decisions in the 1990's, several valuation specialists and

merchant banking organizations have taken up valuation and market making in intellecutual

property. Essentially, treating intellectual property instruments as another asset class for

investor portfolios and treating them more like securities. Several firms are prevalent in this

field, Ocean Tomo of Chicago, Intellectual Ventures in Seattle, and Crais Management

Group, LLC in New Orleans. They have initiated auctions of intellectual property blocks.

This some have done as a percursor to their plans to create a "stock market" for intellectual

property. Patents and trademarks would be the dominant form of security traded on these

exchanges. To have an open market for intellectual property would create a more uniform

and transparent form of IP valuation. The "Bid" and "Ask" system, many believe, is the most

efficient form of valuing an asset. A "stock exchange" for intellectual property would change

the face of intellectual property valuation.

7. Valuation of mining projects

In mining, valuation is the process of determining the value or worth of a mining property.

Mining valuations are sometimes required for IPO's, fairness opinions, litigation, mergers &

acquisitions and shareholder related matters.

In valuation of a mining project or mining property, fair market value is the standard of value

to be used. The CIMVal Standards are a recognised standard for valuation of mining projects

and is also recognised by the Toronto Stock Exchange (Venture). The standards spearheaded

by Spence & Roscoe, stress the use of the cost approach, market approach and the income

approach, depending on the stage of development of the mining property or project.
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8. Asset pricing models

 Capital asset pricing model (CAPM)

 Arbitrage pricing theory (APT)

 Black-Scholes (for options)

 Single-index model

: Financial Statements And Analysis

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Understand the different financial statements and their purpose in the filed of financial

management.

 To understand the main valuation methods.

Definition/Overview:

Financial statements: (or financial reports) are formal records of a business' financial activities.

Key Points:

1. Financial statements

In British English, including United Kingdom company law, financial statements are often

referred to as accounts, although the term financial statements is also used, particularly by

accountants.

Financial statements provide an overview of a business' financial condition in both short and

long term. There are four basic financial statements:
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 Balance sheet: also referred to as statement of financial position or condition, reports on a

company's assets, liabilities, and net equity as of a given point in time.

 Income statement: also referred to as Profit and Loss statement (or a "P&L"), reports on a

company's income, expenses, and profits over a period of time.

 Statement of retained earnings: explains the changes in a company's retained earnings over the

reporting period.

 Statement of cash flows: reports on a company's cash flow activities, particularly its operating,

investing and financing activities.

For large corporations, these statements are often complex and may include an extensive set

of notes to the financial statements and management discussion and analysis. The notes

typically describe each item on the balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement

in further detail. Notes to financial statements are considered an integral part of the financial

statements.

2. Purpose of financial statements

"The objective of financial statements is to provide information about the financial position,

performance and changes in financial position of an enterprise that is useful to a wide range

of users in making economic decisions." Financial statements should be understandable,

relevant, reliable and comparable. Reported assets, liabilities and equity are directly related

to an organization's financial position. Reported income and expenses are directly related to

an organization's financial performance.

Financial statements are intended to be understandable by readers who have "a reasonable

knowledge of business and economic activities and accounting and who are willing to study

the information diligently."

 Owners and managers require financial statements to make important business decisions that

affect its continued operations. Financial analysis are then performed on these statements to

provide management with a more detailed understanding of the figures. These statements are

also used as part of management's annual report to the stockholders.

 Employees also need these reports in making collective bargaining agreements (CBA) with the

management, in the case of labor unions or for individuals in discussing their compensation,

promotion and rankings.
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3. External Users

They are potential investors, banks, government agencies and other parties who are outside

the business but need financial information about the business for a diverse number of

reasons.

 Prospective investors make use of financial statements to assess the viability of investing in a

business. Financial analyses are often used by investors and is prepared by professionals

(financial analysts), thus providing them with the basis in making investment decisions.

 Financial institutions (banks and other lending companies) use them to decide whether to grant a

company with fresh working capital or extend debt securities (such as a long-term bank loan or

debentures) to finance expansion and other significant expenditures.

 Government entities (tax authorities) need financial statements to ascertain the propriety and

accuracy of taxes and other duties declared and paid by a company.

 Media and the general public are also interested in financial statements for a variety of reasons.

4. Government financial statements

The rules for the recording, measurement and presentation of government financial

statements may be different from those required for business and even for non-profit

organizations. They may use either of two accounting methods: accrual accounting, or cash

accounting, or a combination of the two. A complete set of chart of accounts is also used that

is substantially different from the chart of a profit-oriented business

5. Audit and legal implications

Although the legal statutes may differ from country to country, an audit of financial

statements are usually, but not exclusively required for investment, financing, and tax

purposes. These are usually performed by independent accountants or auditing firms. Results

of the audit are summarized in an audit report that either provide an unqualified opinion on

the financial statements or qualifications as to its fairness and accuracy. The audit opinion on

the financial statements is usually included in the annual report.
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There has been much legal debate over who an auditor is liable to. Since audit reports tend to

be addressed to the current shareholders, it is commonly thought that they owe a legal duty of

care to them. But this may not be the case as determined by common law precedent. In

Canada, auditors are liable only to investors using a prospectus to buy shares in the primary

market. In the United Kingdom, they have been held liable to potential investors when the

auditor was aware of the potential investor and how they would use the information in the

financial statements. Nowadays auditors tend to include in their report liability restricting

language, discouraging anyone other than the addressees of their report from relying on it.

Liability is an important issue: in the UK, for example, auditors have unlimited liability.

In the United States, especially in the post-Enron era there has been substantial concern about

the accuracy of financial statements. Corporate officers (the chief executive officer (CEO)

and chief financial officer (CFO)) are personally liable for attesting that financial statements

"do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by th[e] report."

Making or certifying misleading financial statements exposes the people involved to

substantial civil and criminal liability. For example Bernie Ebbers (former CEO of

WorldCom) was sentenced to 25 years in federal prison for allowing WorldCom's revenues

to be overstated by $11 billion over five years.

6. Standards and regulations

Different countries have developed their own accounting principles over time, making

international comparisons of companies difficult. To ensure uniformity and comparability

between financial statements prepared by different companies, a set of guidelines and rules

are used. Commonly referred to as Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), these

set of guidelines provide the basis in the preparation of financial statements.

Recently there has been a push towards standardizing accounting rules made by the

International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"). IASB develops International Financial

Reporting Standards that have been adopted by Australia, Canada and the European Union

(for publicly quoted companies only), are under consideration in South Africa and other
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countries. The United States Financial Accounting Standards Board has made a commitment

to converge the U.S. GAAP and IFRS over time.

7. Inclusion in annual reports

To entice new investors, most public companies assemble their financial statements on fine

paper with pleasing graphics and photos in an annual report to shareholders, attempting to

capture the excitement and culture of the organization in a "marketing brochure" of sorts.

Usually the company's chief executive will write a letter to shareholders, describing

management's performance and the company's financial highlights.

In the United States, prior to the advent of the internet, the annual report was considered the

most effective way for corporations to communicate with individual shareholders. Blue chip

companies went to great expense to produce and mail out attractive annual reports to every

shareholder. The annual report was often prepared in the style of a coffee table book.

: The Firm And Its Financial Environment

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To describe what the subject of financial management is about.

 To explain profit maximization.

 To explain the 10 principles that form the basics of financial management.

Definition/Overview:

Agency problem: Problem resulting from conflicts of interest between the manager (the

stockholder's agent) and the stockholders.

Corporation: An entity that 'legally' functions separate and apart from its owners.
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Efficient market: A market in which the values of securities at any instant in time fully reflect

all available information, which results in the market value and the intrinsic value being the

same.

Initial public offering (IPO): The first time the company's stock is sold to the public.

Limited liability company (LLC): An organizational form that is a cross between a partnership

and a corporation.

Partnership: An association of two or more individuals joining together as co-owners to operate

a business for profit.

Primary market: Transactions in securities offered for the first time to potential investors.

Seasoned new issue: Stock offerings by companies that already have common stock traded.

Secondary market: Transactions in currently outstanding securities.

Sole proprietorship: A business owned by a single individual.

Key Points:

1. Business entities

The law of business organizations originally derived from the common law of England, but

has evolved significantly in the Twentieth century. In common law countries today, the most

commonly addressed forms are:

 corporations (Inc.,Co.,Corp.);

 limited companies.

 limited liability partnerships;

 limited partnerships;

 not-for-profit corporations;
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 partnerships, sometimes called "general partnerships";

 sole proprietorships;

The proprietary limited company is a statutory business form in several countries, including

Australia. Many countries have forms of business entity unique to that country, although

there are equivalents elsewhere. Examples are the Limited-liability company (LLC) and the

limited liability limited partnership (LLLP) in the United States.

Other types of business organisations, such as cooperatives, credit unions and publicly owned

enterprises, can be established with purposes that parallel, supersede, or even replace the

profit maximization mandate of business corporations.

Other business forms are available in civil law countries, such as the German Gesellschaft

mit beschrnkter Haftung (GmbH) and Aktiengesellschaft (AG); and the S.A., a form used in

a number of countries which translates from various languages into the equivalent of

anonymous society or anonymous company.

For a country-by-country listing of officially recognized forms of business organization, see

Types of business entity.

There are various types of company that can be formed in different jurisdictions, but the most

common forms of company are:

 a company limited by guarantee. Commonly used where companies are formed for non-

commercial purposes, such as clubs or charities. The members guarantee the payment of certain

(usually nominal) amounts if the company goes into insolvent liquidation, but otherwise they

have no economic rights in relation to the company

 a company limited by guarantee with a share capital. A hybrid entity, usually used where the

company is formed for non-commercial purposes, but the activities of the company are partly

funded by investors who expect a return.

 a company limited by shares. The most common form of company used for business ventures.

 an unlimited liability company. A company where the liability of members for the debts of the

company are unlimited. Today these are only seen in rare and unusual circumstances.

There are, however, many specific categories of corporations and other business

organizations which may be formed in various countries and jurisdictions throughout the

world.
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2. Maximization of Shareholders Wealth

Any costs incurred by a firm may be classed into two groups: fixed cost and variable cost.

Fixed costs are incurred by the business at any level of output, including zero output. These

may include equipment maintenance, rent, wages, and general upkeep. Variable costs change

with the level of output, increasing as more product is generated. Materials consumed during

production often have the largest impact on this category. Fixed cost and variable cost,

combined, equal total cost.

Revenue is the total amount of money that flows into the firm. This can be from any source,

including product sales, government subsidies, venture capital and personal funds.

Marginal cost and revenue, depending on whether the calculus approach is taken or not, are

defined as either the change in cost or revenue as each additional unit is produced, or the

derivative of cost or revenue with respect to quantity output. It may also be defined as the

addition to total cost as output increase by a single unit. For instance, taking the first

definition, if it costs a firm 400 USD to produce 5 units and 480 USD to produce 6, the

marginal cost of the sixth unit is approximately 80 dollars, although this is more accurately

stated as the marginal cost of the 5.5th unit due to linear interpolation. Calculus is capable of

providing more accurate answers if regression equations can be provided.

 Total Cost-Total Revenue Method

To obtain the profit maximizing output quantity, we start by recognizing that profit is

equal to total revenue (TR) minus total cost (TC). Given a table of costs and revenues at

each quantity, we can either compute equations or plot the data directly on a graph.

Finding the profit-maximizing output is as simple as finding the output at which profit

reaches its maximum. That is represented by output Q in the diagram.

There are two graphical ways of determining that Q is optimal. Firstly, we see that the

profit curve is at its maximum at this point (A). Secondly, we see that at the point (B) that

the tangent on the total cost curve (TC) is parallel to the total revenue curve (TR), the

surplus of revenue net of costs (B,C) is the greatest. Because total revenue minus total

costs is equal to profit, the line segment C,B is equal in length to the line segment A,Q.
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Computing the price at which to sell the product requires knowledge of the firm's demand

curve. The price at which quantity demanded equals profit-maximizing output is the

optimum price to sell the product.

 Marginal Cost-Marginal Revenue Method

If total revenue and total cost figures are difficult to procure, this method may also be

used. For each unit sold, marginal profit equals marginal revenue minus marginal cost.

Then, if marginal revenue is greater than marginal cost, marginal profit is positive, and if

marginal revenue is less than marginal cost, marginal profit is negative. When marginal

revenue equals marginal cost, marginal profit is zero. Since total profit increases when

marginal profit is positive and total profit decreases when marginal profit is negative, it

must reach a maximum where marginal profit is zero - or where marginal cost equals

marginal revenue. This is because the producer has collected positive profit up until the

intersection of MR and MC (where zero profit is collected and any further production

will result in negative marginal profit, because MC will be larger than MR). The

intersection of marginal revenue (MR) with marginal cost (MC) is shown in the next

diagram as point A. If the industry is competitive (as is assumed in the diagram), the firm

faces a demand curve (D) that is identical to its Marginal revenue curve (MR), and this is

a horizontal line at a price determined by industry supply and demand. Average total

costs are represented by curve ATC. Total economic profits are represented by area

P,A,B,C. The optimum quantity (Q) is the same as the optimum quantity (Q) in the first

diagram. If the firm is operating in a non-competitive market, minor changes would have

to be made to the diagrams.

3. Principles of Ethics in Financial management

Ten Principles that form the foundation of financial management.

 Principle 1: The risk-return tradeoff - we won't take additional risk unless we expect to be

compensated with additional return.

 Principle 2: The time value of money - a dollar received today is worth more than a dollar

received in the future.
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 Principle 3: Cash -- Not Profits -- is King. In measuring value we will use cash flows rather than

accounting profits because it is only cash flows that the firm receives and is able to reinvest.

 Principle 4: Incremental cash flows - it's only what changes that count. In making business

decisions we will only concern ourselves with what happens as a result of that decision.

 Principle 5: The curse of competitive markets - why it's hard to find exceptionally profitable

projects. In competitive markets, extremely large profits cannot exist for very long because of

competition moving in to exploit those large profits. As a result, profitable projects can only be

found if the market is made less competitive, either through product differentiation or by

achieving a cost advantage.

 Principle 6: Efficient Capital Markets - The markets are quick and the prices are right.

 Principle 7: The agency problem - managers won't work for the owners unless it's in their best

interest. The agency problem is a result of the separation between the decision makers and the

owners of the firm. As a result managers may make decisions that are not in line with the goal of

maximization of shareholder wealth.

 Principle 8: Taxes bias business decisions.

 Principle 9: All risk is not equal since some risk can be diversified away and some cannot. The

process of diversification can reduce risk, and as a result, measuring a projects or an asset's risk

is very difficult.

 Principle 10: Ethical behavior is doing the right thing, and ethical dilemmas are everywhere in

finance. Ethical behavior is important in financial management, just as it is important in

everything we do. Unfortunately, precisely how we define what is and what is not ethical

behavior is sometimes difficult. Nevertheless, we should not give up the quest.

: Capital Budgeting: Cash Flow Principles

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Determine whether a new project should be accepted using the payback period.

 To Determine whether a new project should be accepted using the net present value
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 To Determine whether a new project should be accepted using the profitability index.

 To Determine whether a new project should be accepted using the internal rate of return.

 To Explain the importance of ethical considerations in capital-budgeting decisions.

 To Discuss the trends in the use of different capital-budgeting criteria.

Definition/Overview:

Capital budgeting: The decision-making process with respect to investment in fixed assets.

Discounted payback period: A variation of the payback period decision criterion defined as the

number of years required to recover the initial cash outlay from the discounted net cash flows.

Internal rate of return (IRR): A capital budgeting decision criterion that reflects the rate of

return a project earns. Mathematically, it is the discount rate that equates the present value of the

inflows with the present value of the outflows.

Modified internal rate of return (MIRR): A variation of the IRR capital-budgeting decision

criterion defined as the discount rate that equates the present value of the project's annual cash

outlays with the present value of the project's terminal value, where the terminal value is defined

as the sum of the future value of the project's free cash flows compounded to the project's

termination at the

Net present value (NPV): A capital budgeting decision criterion defined as the present value of

the free cash flows after tax less the project's initial outlay.

Net present value profile: A graph showing how a project's net present value changes as the

discount rate changes.

Payback period: A capital-budgeting criterion defined as the number of years required to

recover the initial cash investment.

Profitability index (PI) (or benefit/cost ratio)
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Key Points:

1. Capital budgeting

Capital budgeting (or investment appraisal) is the planning process used to determine

whether a firm's long term investments such as new machinery, replacement machinery, new

plants, new products, and research development projects are worth pursuing.

Many formal methods are used in capital budgeting, including the techniques such as

 Net present value

 Profitability index

 Internal rate of return

 Modified Internal Rate of Return, and

 Equivalent annuity.

These methods use the incremental cash flows from each potential investment, or project.

Techniques based on accounting earnings and accounting rules are sometimes used - though

economists consider this to be improper - such as the accounting rate of return, and "return

on investment." Simplified and hybrid methods are used as well, such as payback period and

discounted payback period.

2. Net present value

Each potential project's value should be estimated using a discounted cash flow (DCF)

valuation, to find its net present value (NPV). (First applied to Corporate Finance by Joel

Dean in 1951; see also Fisher separation theorem, John Burr Williams: Theory.) This

valuation requires estimating the size and timing of all of the incremental cash flows from the

project. These future cash flows are then discounted to determine their present value. These

present values are then summed, to get the NPV. The NPV decision rule is to accept all

positive NPV projects in an unconstrained environment, or if projects are mutually exclusive,

accept the one with the highest NPV(GE)
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The NPV is greatly affected by the discount rate, so selecting the proper rate - sometimes

called the hurdle rate - is critical to making the right decision. The hurdle rate is the

minimum acceptable return on an investment. It should reflect the riskiness of the

investment, typically measured by the volatility of cash flows, and must take into account the

financing mix. Managers may use models such as the CAPM or the APT to estimate a

discount rate appropriate for each particular project, and use the weighted average cost of

capital (WACC) to reflect the financing mix selected. A common practice in choosing a

discount rate for a project is to apply a WACC that applies to the entire firm, but a higher

discount rate may be more appropriate when a project's risk is higher than the risk of the firm

as a whole.

3. Internal rate of return

The internal rate of return (IRR) is defined as the discount rate that gives a net present

value (NPV) of zero. It is a commonly used measure of investment efficiency.

The IRR method will result in the same decision as the NPV method for (non-mutually

exclusive) projects in an unconstrained environment, in the usual cases where a negative cash

flow occurs at the start of the project, followed by all positive cash flows. In most realistic

cases, all independent projects that have an IRR higher than the hurdle rate should be

accepted. Nevertheless, for mutually exclusive projects, the decision rule of taking the

project with the highest IRR - which is often used - may select a project with a lower NPV.

In some cases, several zero NPV discount rates may exist, so there is no unique IRR. The

IRR exists and is unique if one or more years of net investment (negative cash flow) are

followed by years of net revenues. But if the signs of the cash flows change more than once,

there may be several IRRs. The IRR equation generally cannot be solved analytically but

only via iterations.

One shortcoming of the IRR method is that it is commonly misunderstood to convey the

actual annual profitability of an investment. However, this is not the case because

intermediate cash flows are almost never reinvested at the project's IRR; and, therefore, the
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actual rate of return is almost certainly going to be lower. Accordingly, a measure called

Modified Internal Rate of Return (MIRR) is often used.

Despite a strong academic preference for NPV, surveys indicate that executives prefer IRR

over NPV, although they should be used in concert. In a budget-constrained environment,

efficiency measures should be used to maximize the overall NPV of the firm. Some

managers find it intuitively more appealing to evaluate investments in terms of percentage

rates of return than dollars of NPV.

4. Equivalent annuity method

The equivalent annuity method expresses the NPV as an annualized cash flow by dividing it

by the present value of the annuity factor. It is often used when assessing only the costs of

specific projects that have the same cash inflows. In this form it is known as the equivalent

annual cost (EAC) method and is the cost per year of owning and operating an asset over its

entire lifespan.

It is often used when comparing investment projects of unequal lifespans. For example if

project A has an expected lifetime of 7 years, and project B has an expected lifetime of 11

years it would be improper to simply compare the net present values (NPVs) of the two

projects, unless the projects could not be repeated.

The use of the EAC method implies that the project will be replaced by an identical project.

Alternatively the chain method can be used with the NPV method under the assumption that

the projects will be replaced with the same cash flows each time. To compare projects of

unequal length, say 3 years and 4 years, the projects are chained together, i.e. four repetitions

of the 3 year project are compare to three repetitions of the 4 year project. The chain method

and the EAC method give mathematically equivalent answers.

The assumption of the same cash flows for each link in the chain is essentially an assumption

of zero inflation, so a real interest rate rather than a nominal interest rate is commonly used in

the calculations.
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5. Real options

Real options analysis has become important since the 1970s as option pricing models have

gotten more sophisticated. The discounted cash flow methods essentially value projects as if

they were risky bonds, with the promised cash flows known. But managers will have many

choices of how to increase future cash inflows, or to decrease future cash outflows. In other

words, managers get to manage the projects - not simply accept or reject them. Real options

analysis try to value the choices - the option value - that the managers will have in the future

and adds these values to the NPV.

6. Ranked Projects

The real value of capital budgeting is to rank projects. Most organizations have many

projects that could potentially be financially rewarding. Once it has been determined that a

particular project has exceeded its hurdle, then it should be ranked against peer projects (e.g.

- highest Profitability index to lowest Profitability index). The highest ranking projects

should be implemented until the budgeted capital has been expended.

In Section 3 of this course you will cover these topics:
Capital Budgeting Techniques: Certainty And Risk

Cost Of Capital

Capital Structure And Dividends

Financial Planning

You may take as much time as you want to complete the topic coverd in section 3.
There is no time limit to finish any Section, However you must finish All Sections before

semester end date.

If you want to continue remaining courses later, you may save the course and leave.
You can continue later as per your convenience and this course will be avalible in your

area to save and continue later.
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: Capital Budgeting Techniques: Certainty And Risk

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Explain what the appropriate measure of risk is for capital-budgeting purposes.

 To Determine the acceptability of a new project using both the certainty equivalent and risk-

adjusted discount rate methods of adjusting for risk.

 To Explain the use of simulation and probability trees for imitating the performance of a project

under evaluation.

Definition/Overview:

Certainty equivalent: The amount of cash a person would require with certainty to make him or

her indifferent between this certain sum and a particular risky or uncertain sum.

Certainty equivalent approach: A method for incorporating risk into the capital-budgeting

decision in which the decision maker substitutes a set of equivalent riskless cash flows for the

expected cash flows and then discounts these cash flows back to the present.

Joint probability: The probability of two different sequential outcomes occurring.

Probability tree: A schematic representation of a problem in which all possible outcomes are

graphically displayed.

Project's contribution-to-firm risk: The amount of risk that a project contributes to the firm as

a whole. That is, it is a project's risk considering the effects of diversification among different

projects within the firm, but ignoring the effects of shareholder diversification within the

portfolio.

Project standing alone risk: The risk of a project standing alone is measured by the variability
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of the asset's expected returns. That is, it is the risk of a project ignoring the fact that it is only

one of many projects within the firm, and the firm's stock is but one of many stocks within a

stockholder's portfolio.

Pure play method: A method of estimating a project's beta that attempts to identify a publicly

traded firm that is engaged solely in the same business as the project, and uses that beta as a

proxy for the project's beta.

Risk-adjusted discount rate: A method for incorporating the project's level of risk into the

capital- budgeting process, in which the discount rate is adjusted upward to compensate for

higher than normal risk or downward to adjust for lower than normal risk.

Scenario analysis: Simulation analysis that focuses on an examination of the range of possible

outcomes.

Sensitivity analysis: The process of determining how the distribution of possible returns for a

particular project is affected by a change in one particular input variable.

Simulation: The process of imitating the performance of an investment project under evaluation

using a computer. This is done by randomly selecting observations from each of the distributions

that affect the outcome of the project, combining those observations to determine the final output

of the project, and continuing with this process until a representative record of the project's

probable outcome is assembled.

Systematic risk: The risk of a project measured from the point of view of a well-diversified

shareholder. That is, it is a project's risk taking into account the fact that this project is only one

of many projects within the firm, and the firm's stock is but one of many stocks within a

stockholder's portfolio.
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Key Points:

1. Risk and the investment decision

Valuation of financial assets is done using one or more of these types of models:

 Relative value models determine the value based on the market prices of similar assets.

 Absolute value models determine the value by estimating the expected future earnings from

owning the asset discounted to their present value.

 Option pricing models are used for certain types of financial assets (e.g., warrants, put options,

call options, employee stock options, investments with embedded options such as a callable

bond) and are a complex present value model. The most common option pricing models are the

Black-Scholes-Merton models and lattice models.

Common terms for the value of an asset or liability are fair market value, fair value, and

intrinsic value. The meanings of these terms differ. The most common term in use is

probably fair market value defined as the cash price an item would sell for between a willing

buyer and willing seller assuming they both have knowledge of the relevant facts and they

have no compulsion to buy or sell. Fair value is used in different contexts and has multiple

meanings. Some people use the term to mean the same thing as fair market value.

Furthermore, fair value is also used in accounting and law. In accounting, the term is used as

part of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in financial reporting. In law, fair

value is often used in state statutes for shareholder rights. In both cases, fair value is defined

in the accounting literature or the law, respectively. Fair value in the accounting and legal

contexts may be different from each other and may also be different from fair market value.

Another term--intrinsic value--is the "true" value of an asset regardless of the asset's market

price. For instance, when an analyst believes a stock's intrinsic value is greater than its

market price, the analyst makes a "buy" recommendation and vice versa. Moreover, an asset's

intrinsic value may be subject to personal opinion and vary among analysts.
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2. Risk and diversification

The risk of a portfolio comprises systematic risk, also known as undiversifiable risk, and

unsystematic risk which is also known as idiosyncratic risk or diversifiable risk. Systematic

risk refers to the risk common to all securities - i.e. market risk. Unsystematic risk is the risk

associated with individual assets. Unsystematic risk can be diversified away to smaller levels

by including a greater number of assets in the portfolio (specific risks "average out"). The

same is not possible for systematic risk within one market. Depending on the market, a

portfolio of approximately 30-40 securities in developed markets such as UK or US will

render the portfolio sufficiently diversified to limit exposure to systemic risk only. In

developing markets a larger number is required, due to the higher asset volatilities.

A rational investor should not take on any diversifiable risk, as only non-diversifiable risks

are rewarded within the scope of this model. Therefore, the required return on an asset, that

is, the return that compensates for risk taken, must be linked to its riskiness in a portfolio

context - i.e. its contribution to overall portfolio riskiness - as opposed to its "stand alone

riskiness." In the CAPM context, portfolio risk is represented by higher variance i.e. less

predictability. In other words the beta of the portfolio is the defining factor in rewarding the

systematic exposure taken by an investor.

3. The efficient frontier

The CAPM assumes that the risk-return profile of a portfolio can be optimized - an optimal

portfolio displays the lowest possible level of risk for its level of return. Additionally, since

each additional asset introduced into a portfolio further diversifies the portfolio, the optimal

portfolio must comprise every asset, (assuming no trading costs) with each asset value-

weighted to achieve the above (assuming that any asset is infinitely divisible). All such

optimal portfolios, i.e., one for each level of return, comprise the efficient frontier.

Because the unsystematic risk is diversifiable, the total risk of a portfolio can be viewed as

beta.
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4. The market portfolio

An investor might choose to invest a proportion of his or her wealth in a portfolio of risky

assets with the remainder in cash - earning interest at the risk free rate (or indeed may borrow

money to fund his or her purchase of risky assets in which case there is a negative cash

weighting). Here, the ratio of risky assets to risk free asset does not determine overall return -

this relationship is clearly linear. It is thus possible to achieve a particular return in one of

two ways:

 By investing all of one's wealth in a risky portfolio,

 By investing a proportion in a risky portfolio and the remainder in cash (either borrowed or

invested).

For a given level of return, however, only one of these portfolios will be optimal (in the sense

of lowest risk). Since the risk free asset is, by definition, uncorrelated with any other asset,

option 2 will generally have the lower variance and hence be the more efficient of the two.

This relationship also holds for portfolios along the efficient frontier: a higher return

portfolio plus cash is more efficient than a lower return portfolio alone for that lower level of

return. For a given risk free rate, there is only one optimal portfolio which can be combined

with cash to achieve the lowest level of risk for any possible return. This is the market

portfolio.

5. Assumptions of CAPM

All Investors:

 Aim to maximize economic utility.

 Are rational risk-averse.

 Are price takers, i.e., they cannot influence prices.

 Can lend and borrow unlimited under the risk free rate of interest.

 Trade without transaction or taxation costs.

 Deal with securities that are all highly divisible into small parcels.
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 Assume all information is at the same time available to all investors.

6. Shortcomings of CAPM

 The model assumes that asset returns are (jointly) normally distributed random variables. It is

however frequently observed that returns in equity and other markets are not normally

distributed. As a result, large swings (3 to 6 standard deviations from the mean) occur in the

market more frequently than the normal distribution assumption would expect.

 The model assumes that the variance of returns is an adequate measurement of risk. This might

be justified under the assumption of normally distributed returns, but for general return

distributions other risk measures (like coherent risk measures) will likely reflect the investors'

preferences more adequately.

 The model does not appear to adequately explain the variation in stock returns. Empirical studies

show that low beta stocks may offer higher returns than the model would predict. Some data to

this effect was presented as early as a 1969 conference in Buffalo, New York in a paper by

Fischer Black, Michael Jensen, and Myron Scholes. Either that fact is itself rational (which saves

the Efficient Market Hypothesis but makes CAPM wrong), or it is irrational (which saves

CAPM, but makes the EMH wrong indeed, this possibility makes volatility arbitrage a strategy

for reliably beating the market).

 The model assumes that given a certain expected return investors will prefer lower risk (lower

variance) to higher risk and conversely given a certain level of risk will prefer higher returns to

lower ones. It does not allow for investors who will accept lower returns for higher risk. Casino

gamblers clearly pay for risk, and it is possible that some stock traders will pay for risk as well.

 The model assumes that all investors have access to the same information and agree about the

risk and expected return of all assets (homogeneous expectations assumption).

 The model assumes that there are no taxes or transaction costs, although this assumption may be

relaxed with more complicated versions of the model.

 The market portfolio consists of all assets in all markets, where each asset is weighted by its

market capitalization. This assumes no preference between markets and assets for individual

investors, and that investors choose assets solely as a function of their risk-return profile. It also

assumes that all assets are infinitely divisible as to the amount which may be held or transacted.
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 The market portfolio should in theory include all types of assets that are held by anyone as an

investment (including works of art, real estate, human capital...) In practice, such a market

portfolio is unobservable and people usually substitute a stock index as a proxy for the true

market portfolio. Unfortunately, it has been shown that this substitution is not innocuous and can

lead to false inferences as to the validity of the CAPM, and it has been said that due to the

inobservability of the true market portfolio, the CAPM might not be

Topic
: Cost Of Capital

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Describe the concepts underlying the firm's cost of capital (technically, its weighted average

cost of capital) and the purpose for its calculation.

 To Calculate the after-tax cost of debt, preferred stock, and common equity.

 To Calculate a firm's weighted average cost of capital.

 To Describe the procedure used by PepsiCo to estimate the cost of capital for a multiple division

firm.

 To Use the cost of capital to evaluate new investment opportunities

Definition/Overview:

Business risk: The potential variability in a firm's earnings before interest and taxes resulting

from the nature of the firm's business endeavors.

Capital asset pricing model (CAPM): An equation stating that the expected rate of return on an
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investment is a function of (1) the risk-free rate, (2) the investment's systematic risk, and (3) the

expected risk premium for the market portfolio of all risky securities.

Capital structure: The mix of longterm sources of funds used by the firm.

Financial policy: The firm's policies regarding the sources of financing and the particular mix in

which they will be used.

Financial risk: The added variability in earnings available to a firm's shareholders and the

additional risk of insolvency caused by the use of financing sources that require a fixed return.

Flotation costs: The underwriter's spread and issuing costs associated with the issuance and

marketing of new securities.

Investor's required rate of return: The minimum rate of return necessary to attract an investor

to purchase or hold a security.

Target capital structure proportions: The mix of financing sources that the firm plans to

maintain through time.

Weighted average cost of capital: The average of the after-tax costs of each of the sources of

capital used by a firm to finance a project. The weights reflect the proportion of the total

financing raised from each source.
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Key Points:

1. Cost of Capital

Capital (money) used for funding a business should earn returns for the capital providers who

risk their capital. For an investment to be worthwhile, the expected return on capital must be

greater than the cost of capital. In other words, the risk-adjusted return on capital (that is,

incorporating not just the projected returns, but the probabilities of those projections) must be

higher than the cost of capital.

The cost of debt is relatively simple to calculate, as it is composed of the rate of interest paid.

In practice, the interest-rate paid by the company will include the risk-free rate plus a risk

component, which itself incorporates a probable rate of default (and amount of recovery

given default). For companies with similar risk or credit ratings, the interest rate is largely

exogenous.

Cost of equity is more challenging to calculate as equity does not pay a set return to its

investors. Similar to the cost of debt, the cost of equity is broadly defined as the risk-

weighted projected return required by investors, where the return is largely unknown. The

cost of equity is therefore inferred by comparing the investment to other investments with

similar risk profiles to determine the "market" cost of equity.

The cost of capital is often used as the discount rate, the rate at which projected cash flow

will be discounted to give a present value or net present value.

2. Cost of debt

The cost of debt is computed by taking the rate on a risk free Bond whose duration matches

the term structure of the corporate debt, then adding a default premium. This default

premium will rise as the amount of debt increases (since the risk rises as the amount of debt

rises). Since in most cases debt expense is a deductible expense, the cost of debt is computed

as an after tax cost to make it comparable with the cost of equity (earnings are after-tax as

well). Thus, for profitable firms, debt is discounted by the tax rate. Basically this is used for

large corporations only.

The formula can be written as i(1 − T), where i is the interest rate, and T the corporate tax

rate.
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3. Cost of equity

Cost of equity = Risk free rate of return + Premium expected for risk

3.1 Expected return

The expected return can be calculated as the "dividend capitalization model", which is

(dividend per share / price per share) + growth rate of dividends (that is, dividend yield

+ growth rate of dividends).

3.2 Capital asset pricing model

The capital asset pricing model (CAPM) is used in finance to determine a theoretically

appropriate price of an asset such as a security. The expected return on equity according

to the capital asset pricing model. The market risk is normally characterized by the β

parameter. Thus, the investors would expect (or demand) to receive:

Where:

Es

The expected return for a security

Rf

The expected risk-free return in that market (government bond yield)

βs

The sensitivity to market risk for the security

RM

The historical return of the stock market/ equity market

(RM-Rf)

The risk premium of market assets over risk free assets.
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In writing:

o The expected return (%) = risk-free return (%) + sensitivity to market risk * (historical return

(%) - risk-free return (%))

o Put another way the expected rate of return (%) = the yield on the treasury note closest to the

term of your project + the beta of your project or security * (the market risk premium) the market

risk premium has historically been between 3-5%

3.3 Comments

The models states that investors will expect a return that is the risk-free return plus the

security's sensitivity to market risk times the market risk premium.

The risk free rate is taken from the lowest yielding bonds in the particular market, such

as government bonds.

The risk premium varies over time and place, but in some developed countries during

the twentieth century it has averaged around 5%. The equity market real capital gain

return has been about the same as annual real GDP growth. The capital gains on the

Dow Jones Industrial Average have been 1.6% per year over the period 1910-2005 ().

The dividends have increased the total "real" return on average equity to the double,

about 3.2%.

The sensitivity to market risk (β) is unique for each firm and depends on everything

from management to its business and capital structure. This value cannot be known "ex

ante" (beforehand), but can be estimated from "ex post" (past) returns and past

experience with similar firms.

Note that retained earnings are a component of equity, and therefore the cost of retained

earnings is equal to the cost of equity. Dividends (earnings that are paid to investors and

not retained) are a component of the return on capital to equity holders, and influence

the cost of capital through that mechanism.
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3.4 Weighted average cost of capital

The Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) is used in finance to measure a firm's

cost of capital.

The total capital for a firm is the value of its equity (for a firm without outstanding

warrants and options, this is the same as the company's market capitalization) plus the

cost of its debt (the cost of debt should be continually updated as the cost of debt

changes as a result of interest rate changes). Notice that the "equity" in the debt to equity

ratio is the market value of all equity, not the shareholders' equity on the balance sheet.

Calculation of WACC is an iterative procedure which requires estimation of the fair

market value of equity capital.

3.5 Capital structure

Because of tax advantages on debt issuance, it will be cheaper to issue debt rather than

new equity (this is only true for profitable firms, tax breaks are available only to

profitable firms). At some point, however, the cost of issuing new debt will be greater

than the cost of issuing new equity. This is because adding debt increases the default

risk - and thus the interest rate that the company must pay in order to borrow money. By

utilizing too much debt in its capital structure, this increased default risk can also drive

up the costs for other sources (such as retained earnings and preferred stock) as well.

Management must identify the "optimal mix" of financing the capital structure where

the cost of capital is minimized so that the firm's value can be maximized.

The Thomson Financial league tables show that global debt issuance exceeds equity

issuance with a 90 to 10 margin.

3.6 Modigliani-Miller theorem

If there were no tax advantages for issuing debt, and equity could be freely issued,

Miller and Modigliani showed that, under certain assumptions, the value of a leveraged

firm and the value of an unleveraged firm should be the same. Their paper is

foundational in modern corporate finance.
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: Capital Structure And Dividends

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Explain the relationship between a corporation's dividend policy and the market price of its

common stock.

 To Describe practical considerations that may be important to the firm's dividend policy.

Definition/Overview:

Agency costs: The costs, such as a reduced stock price, associated with potential conflict

between managers and investors when these two groups are not the same.

"Bird-in-the-hand" dividend theory: The belief that dividend income has a higher value to the

investor than does capital gains income, because dividends are more certain than capital gains.

Clientele effect: The belief that individuals and institutions that need current income will invest

in companies that have high dividend payouts. Other investors prefer to avoid taxes by holding

securities that offer only small dividend income, but large capital gains as the capital gains are

deferred until realized. Thus we have a "clientele" of investors.

Constant dividend payout ratio: A dividend payment policy in which the percentage of

earnings paid out in dividends is held constant. The dollar amount fluctuates from year to year as

profits vary.

Date of record: Date at which the stock transfer books are to be closed for determining which

investor is to receive the next dividend payment.

Declaration date: The date upon which a dividend is formally declared by the board of

directors.
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Dividend payout ratio: The amount of dividends relative to the company's net income or

earnings per share.

Ex-dividend date: The date upon which stock brokerage companies have uniformly decided to

terminate the right of ownership to the dividend, which is two days prior to the record date.

Expectations theory: The effect of new information about a company on the firm's stock price

depends more on how the new information compares to expectations than on the actual

announcement itself.

"Increasing-stream hypothesis of dividend policy": A smoothing of the dividend stream in

order to minimize the effect of company reversals. Corporate managers make every effort to

avoid a dividend cut, attempting instead to develop a gradually increasing dividend series over

the long-term future.

Information asymmetry: The difference in accessibility to information between management

and investors may result in a lower stock price than would occur under conditions of certainty.

Payment date: The date on which the company mails a dividend check to each investor.

"Perfect" capital markets: Capital markets where

1. Investors can buy and sell stock without incurring any transaction costs, such as

brokerage commissions

2. Companies can issue stocks without any cost of doing so

3. There are no corporate or personal taxes

4. Complete information about the firm is readily available

5. There are no conflicts of interest between management and stockholders

6. Financial distress and bankruptcy costs are nonexistent.

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

79
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Residual dividend theory: A theory asserting that the dividends to be paid should equal capital

left over after the financing of profitable investments.

Small, regular dividend plus year-end extra dividend payout: A dividend payment policy in

which the firm pays a small regular dividend plus an extra dividend only if the firm has

experienced a good year.

Stable dollar dividend per share payout: A dividend policy that maintains a relatively stable

dollar dividend per share over time.

Stock dividend: A distribution of shares of up to 25 percent of the number of shares currently

outstanding, issued on a pro rata basis to the current stockholders.

Stock repurchase (stock buyback) : The repurchase of common stock by the issuing firm for

any of a variety of reasons resulting in a reduction of shares outstanding.

Stock split: A stock dividend exceeding 25 percent of the number of shares currently

outstanding.

Tender offer: The formal offer by the company to buy a specified number of shares at a

predetermined and stated price.

Key Points:

1. Capital Structure

In finance, capital structure refers to the way a corporation finances its assets through some

combination of equity, debt, or hybrid securities. A firm's capital structure is then the
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composition or 'structure' of its liabilities. For example, a firm that sells $20 billion in equity

and $80 billion in debt is said to be 20% equity-financed and 80% debt-financed. The firm's

ratio of debt to total financing, 80% in this example, is referred to as the firm's leverage. In

reality, capital structure may be highly complex and include tens of sources.

The Modigliani-Miller theorem, proposed by Franco Modigliani and Merton Miller, forms

the basis for modern thinking on capital structure, though it is generally viewed as a purely

theoretical result since it assumes away many important factors in the capital structure

decision. The theorem states that, in a perfect market, the value of a firm is irrelevant to how

that firm is financed. This result provides the base with which to examine real world reasons

why capital structure is relevant, that is, a company's value is affected by the capital structure

it employs. These other reasons include bankruptcy costs, agency costs, taxes, information

asymmetry, to name some. This analysis can then be extended to look at whether there is in

fact an optimal capital structure: the one which maximizes the value of the firm.

2. Capital structure in a perfect market

Assume a perfect capital market (no transaction or bankruptcy costs; perfect information);

firms and individuals can borrow at the same interest rate; no taxes; and investment decisions

aren't affected by financing decisions. Modigliani and Miller made two findings under these

conditions. Their first 'proposition' was that the value of a company is independent of its

capital structure. Their second 'proposition' stated that the cost of equity for a leveraged firm

is equal to the cost of equity for an unleveraged firm, plus an added premium for financial

risk. That is, as leverage increases, while the burden of individual risks is shifted between

different investor classes, total risk is conserved and hence no extra value created.

Their analysis was extended to include the effect of taxes and risky debt. Under a classical

tax system, the tax deductibility of interest makes debt financing valuable; that is, the cost of

capital decreases as the proportion of debt in the capital structure increases. The optimal

structure, then would be to have virtually no equity at all.
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3. Capital structure in the real world

If capital structure is irrelevant in a perfect market, then imperfections which exist in the real

world must be the cause of its relevance. The theories below try to address some of these

imperfections, by relaxing assumptions made in the M&M model.

 Trade-off theory

Trade-off theory allows the bankruptcy cost to exist. It states that there is an advantage to

financing with debt (namely, the tax benefit of debts) and that there is a cost of financing

with debt (the bankruptcy costs of debt). The marginal benefit of further increases in debt

declines as debt increases, while the marginal cost increases, so that a firm that is

optimizing its overall value will focus on this trade-off when choosing how much debt

and equity to use for financing. Empirically, this theory may explain differences in D/E

ratios between industries, but it doesn't explain differences within the same industry.

 Pecking order theory

Pecking Order theory tries to capture the costs of asymmetric information. It states that

companies prioritize their sources of financing (from internal financing to equity)

according to the law of least effort, or of least resistance, preferring to raise equity as a

financing means of last resort. Hence: internal debt is used first; when that is depleted,

then debt is issued; and when it is no longer sensible to issue any more debt, equity is

issued. This theory maintains that businesses adhere to a hierarchy of financing sources

and prefer internal financing when available, and debt is preferred over equity if external

financing is required. Thus, the form of debt a firm chooses can act as a signal of its need

for external finance. The pecking order theory is popularized by Myers (1984) when he

argues that equity is a less preferred means to raise capital because when managers (who

are assumed to know better about true condition of the firm than investors) issue new

equity, investors believe that managers think that the firm is overvalued and managers are

taking advantage of this over-valuation. As a result, investors will place a lower value to

the new equity issuance.

4. Agency Costs

There are three types of agency costs which can help explain the relevance of capital

structure.
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 Asset substitution effect: As D/E increases, management has an increased incentive to undertake

risky (even negative NPV) projects. This is because if the project is successful, share holders get

all the upside, whereas if it is unsuccessful, debt holders get all the downside. If the projects are

undertaken, there is a chance of firm value decreasing and a wealth transfer from debt holders to

share holders.

 Underinvestment problem: If debt is risky (eg in a growth company), the gain from the project

will accrue to debtholders rather than shareholders. Thus, management have an incentive to

reject positive NPV projects, even though they have the potential to increase firm value.

 Free cash flow: unless free cash flow is given back to investors, management has an incentive to

destroy firm value through empire building and perks etc. Increasing leverage imposes financial

discipline on management.

5. Arbitrage

Similar questions are also the concern of a variety of speculator known as a capital-structure

arbitrageur, see arbitrage.

A capital-structure arbitrageur seeks opportunities created by differential pricing of various

instruments issued by one corporation. Consider, for example, traditional bonds and

convertible bonds. The latter are bonds that are, under contracted-for conditions, convertible

into shares of equity. The stock-option component of a convertible bond has a calculable

value in itself. The value of the whole instrument should be the value of the traditional bonds

plus the extra value of the option feature. If the spread, the difference between the

convertible and the non-convertible bonds grows excessively, then the capital-structure

arbitrageur will bet that it will converge.

6. Dividends

Dividends are payments made by a corporation to its shareholder members. When a

corporation earns a profit or surplus, that money can be put to two uses: it can either be re-

invested in the business (called retained earnings), or it can be paid to the shareholders as a

dividend. Many corporations retain a portion of their earnings and pay the remainder as a

dividend.
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For a joint stock company, a dividend is allocated as a fixed amount per share. Therefore, a

shareholder receives a dividend in proportion to their shareholding. For the joint stock

company, paying dividends is not an expense; rather, it is the division of an asset among

shareholders. Public companies usually pay dividends on a fixed schedule, but may declare a

dividend at any time, sometimes called a special dividend to distinguish it from a regular one.

Cooperatives, on the other hand, allocate dividends according to members' activity, so their

dividends are often considered to be a pre-tax expense.

Dividends are usually settled on a cash basis, as a payment from the company to the

shareholder. They can take other forms, such as store credits (common among retail

consumers' cooperatives) and shares in the company (either newly-created shares or existing

shares bought in the market.) Further, many public companies offer dividend reinvestment

plans, which automatically use the cash dividend to purchase additional shares for the

shareholder.

7. Miscellaneous specific types

 Franking credits

In Australia and New Zealand, companies also forward franking credits to shareholders

along with dividends. These franking credits represent the tax paid by the company upon

its pre-tax profits. One dollar of company tax paid generates one franking credit.

Companies can forward any proportion of franking up to a maximum amount that is

calculated from the prevailing company tax rate: for each dollar of dividend paid, the

maximum level of franking is the company tax rate divided by (1 - company tax rate). At

the current 30% rate, this works out at 0.30 of a credit per 70 cents of dividend, or 42.857

cents per dollar of dividend. The shareholders who are able to use them offset these

credits against their income tax bills at a rate of a dollar per credit, thereby effectively

eliminating the double taxation of company profits. This system is called dividend

imputation.

The UK's taxation system operates along similar lines: when a shareholder receives a

dividend, the basic rate of income tax is deemed to already have been paid on that

dividend. This ensures that double taxation does not take place, however this creates
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difficulties for some non-taxpaying entities such as certain trusts, charities and pension

funds which are not allowed to reclaim the deemed tax payment and thus are in effect

taxed on their income.

8. Reliability of dividends

There are two metrics which are commonly used to gauge the sustainability of a firm's

dividend policy.

 Payout ratio is calculated by dividing the company's dividend by the earnings per share. A

payout ratio of more than 1 means the company is paying out more in dividends for the year than

it earned.

 Dividend cover is calculated by dividing the company's cash flow from operations by the

dividend. This ratio is apparently popular with analysts of income trusts in Canada.

9. Other corporate dividends

 Cooperatives:

Cooperative businesses may retain their earnings, or distribute part or all of them as

dividends to their members. They distribute their dividends in proportion to their

members' activity, instead of the value of members' shareholding. Therefore, co-op

dividends are often treated as pre-tax expenses.

Consumers' cooperatives allocate dividends according to their members' trade with the

co-op. For example, a credit union will pay a dividend to represent interest on a saver's

deposit. A retail co-op store chain may return a percentage of a member's purchases from

the co-op, in the form of cash, store credit, or equity. This type of dividend is sometimes

known as a patronage dividend or patronage refund, as well as being informally named

divi or divvy.

Producer cooperatives, such as worker cooperatives, allocate dividends according to their

members' contribution, such as the hours they worked or their salary.

 Trusts:

In real estate investment trusts and royalty trusts, the distributions paid often will be

consistently greater than the company earnings. This can be sustainable because the

accounting earnings do not recognize any increasing value of real estate holdings and
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resource reserves. If there is no economic increase in the value of the company's assets

then the excess distribution (or dividend) will be a return of capital and the book value of

the company will have shrunk by an equal amount. This may result in capital gains which

may be taxed differently than dividends representing distribution of earnings.

 Mutuals:

The distribution of profits by other forms of mutual organization also varies from that of

joint stock companies, though may not take the form of a dividend.

In the case of mutual insurance, for example, in the United States, a distribution of profits

to holders of participating life policies is called a dividend. These profits are generated by

the investment returns of the insurer's general account, in which premiums are invested

and from which claims are paid. The participating dividend may be used to decrease

premiums, or to increase the cash value of the policy. Some life policies pay

nonparticipating dividends. As a contrasting example, in the United Kingdom, the

surrender value of a with-profits policy is increased by a bonus, which also serves the

purpose of distributing profits. Life insurance dividends and bonuses, while typical of

mutual insurance, are also paid by some joint stock insurers.

Insurance dividend payments are not restricted to life policies. For example, general

insurer State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company can distribute dividends to its

vehicle insurance policyholders.

: Financial Planning

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Use the percent of sales method to forecast the financing requirements of a firm.

 To Calculate a firm's sustainable rate of growth.

 To Prepare a cash budget and use it to evaluate the amount and timing of a firm's financing

needs.
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Definition/Overview:

Cash budget: A detailed plan of future cash receipts and disbursements.

Discretionary financing: Sources of financing that require an explicit decision on the part of the

firm's management every time funds are raised.

Percent of sales method: Estimating the level of an expense, asset, or liability for a future

period as a percent of the sales forecast.

Plowback ratio: The percent of a firm's earnings that are reinvested in the firm.

Spontaneous sources of financing: Sources of financing that arise naturally during the course

of business. Accounts payable is a primary example.

Sustainable rate of growth: The maximum rate of growth in sales that the firm can sustain

while maintaining its present capital structure (debt and equity mix) and without having to sell

new common stock.

Key Points:

1. Financial Plan

In general usage, a financial plan can be a budget, a plan for spending and saving future

income. This plan allocates future income to various types of expenses, such as rent or

utilities, and also reserves some income for short-term and long-term savings. A financial

plan can also be an investment plan, which allocates savings to various assets or projects

expected to produce future income, such as a new business or product line, shares in an

existing business, or real estate.
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In business, a financial plan can refer to the three primary financial statements (balance sheet,

income statement, and cash flow statement) created within a business plan. Financial forecast

or financial plan can also refer to an annual projection of income and expenses for a

company, division or department. A financial plan can also be an estimation of cash needs

and a decision on how to raise the cash, such as through borrowing or issuing additional

shares in a company.

While a financial plan refers to estimating future income, expenses and assets, a financing

plan or finance plan usually refers to the means by which cash will be acquired to cover

future expenses, for instance through earning, borrowing or using saved cash.

2. Financial forecasting and planning

The need for forecasting in financial management arises whenever the future financing needs

of the firm are being estimated. There are three basic steps involved in predicting financing

requirements. Project the firm's sales revenues and expenses over the planning period.

Estimate the levels of investment in current and fixed assets, which are necessary to support

the projected sales level. Determine the financing needs of the firm throughout the planning

period. The key ingredient in the firm's planning process is the sales forecast. This forecast

should reflect (l) any past trend in sales that is expected to continue and (2) the effects of any

events, which are expected to have a material effect on the firm's sales during the forecast

period. The traditional problem faced in financial forecasting begins with the sales forecast

and involves making forecasts of the impact of predicted sales on the firm's various expenses,

assets, and liabilities. One technique that can be used to make these forecasts is the percent of

sales method.
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3. Sustainable rate of growth

Sustainable rate of growth indicates how fast a firm can grow without having to increase the

firms debt ratio and without having to sell more stock. Sustainable rate of growth, g = return

on equity x (1 dividend payout ratio)

4. Financial planning and budgeting

Three functions of a budget are indicating the amount and timing of future financing needs,

providing the basis for taking corrective action if actual figures do not match budget

estimates, and evaluating performance of the firm. The cash budget represents a detailed

plan of future cash flows and can be broken down into four components: cash receipts, cash

disbursements, net change in cash for the period, and new financing needed. Although no

strict rules exist, as a general rule, the budget period shall be long enough to show the effect

of management policies, yet short enough so that estimates can be made with reasonable

accuracy. For instance, the capital expenditure budget may be properly developed for a 10-

year period while a cash budget may only cover 12 months. Cash budgets can be used to

develop a pro forma income statement and a pro forma balance sheet. A pro forma income

statement represents a statement of planned profit or loss for the future period and is based

primarily on information generated in the cash budget.The pro forma balance sheet for a

future date is developed by adjusting present balance sheet figures for projected information

found primarily within the cash budget and pro forma income statement.

The process of calculating the costs of starting a small business begins with a list of all

necessary purchases including tangible assets (for example, equipment, inventory) and

services (for example, remodeling, insurance), working capital, sources and collateral. The

budget should contain a narrative explaining how you decided on the amount of this reserve

and a description of the expected financial results of business activities. The assets should be

valued with each and every cost.
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5. Corporate budget

The budget of a company is compiled annually. A finished budget usually requires

considerable effort and can be seen as a financial plan for the new financial year. While

traditionally the Finance department compiles the company's budget, modern software allows

hundreds or even thousands of people in various departments (operations, human resources,

IT etc) to contribute their expected revenues and expenses to the final budget.

If the actual numbers delivered through the financial year turn come close to the budget, this

suggests that the managers understand their business and have been successfully driving it in

the intended direction. On the other hand, if the actuals diverge wildly from the budget, this

sends an 'out of control' signal, and the share price could suffer as a result.

6. Event management budget

A budget and planning tool to assist in calculating and meeting the costs associated with a

business or social event. It is a fundamental tool that enables the event director to predict

with reasonable accuracy whether the event will result in a profit, a loss or will break-even.In

addition to the above a budget can be used as a pricing tools.

7. Government budget

The budget of a government is a summary or plan of the intended revenues and expenditures

of that government. The United States federal budget is prepared by the Office of

Management and Budget, and submitted to Congress for consideration. Invariably, Congress

makes many and substantial changes. Nearly all American states are required to have

balanced budgets, but the federal government is allowed to run deficits.

The United Kingdom budget is prepared by the Chancellor of the Exchequer, the second

most important member of the government, and must be passed by Parliament. Parliament

seldom makes changes to the budget.
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8. Personal or family budget

In a personal or family budget all sources of income (inflows) are identified and expenses

(outflows) are planned with the intent of matching outflows to inflows (making ends meet.)

In consumer theory, the equation restricting an individual or household to spend no more

than its total resources is often called the budget constraint.

9. Budget types

 Sales budget: The sales budget is an estimate of future sales, often broken down into both units

and dollars. It is used to create company sales goals.

 Production budget: Product oriented companies create a production budget which estimates the

number of units that must be manufactured to meet the sales goals. The production budget also

estimates the various costs involved with manufacturing those units, including labor and

material.

 Cash Flow/Cash budget: The cash flow budget is a prediction of future cash receipts and

expenditures for a particular time period. It usually covers a period in the short term future. The

cash flow budget helps the business determine when income will be sufficient to cover expenses

and when the company will need to seek outside financing.

 Marketing budget: The marketing budget is an estimate of the funds needed for promotion,

advertising, and public relations in order to market the product or service.

 Project budget: The project budget is a prediction of the costs associated with a particular

company project. These costs include labor, materials, and other related expenses. The project

budget is often broken down into specific tasks, with task budgets assigned to each.

 Revenue budget: The Revenue Budget consists of revenue receipts of government and the

expenditure met from these revenues. Tax revenues are made up of taxes and other duties that

the Union government levies.

 Expenditure budget: A budget type which includes spending data items
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In Section 4 of this course you will cover these topics:
Short-Term Financial Management

Investment Information And Transactions

How External Forces Affect Firm'S Value

Investing In Stocks

You may take as much time as you want to complete the topic coverd in section 4.
There is no time limit to finish any Section, However you must finish All Sections before

semester end date.

If you want to continue remaining courses later, you may save the course and leave.
You can continue later as per your convenience and this course will be avalible in your

area to save and continue later

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To understand cash conversion cycle.

 To understand the basis of inventory accounting.

 To discuss the role of role of a cost accountant on the 21st-century in a manufacturing

organization

 To discuss the different accounting principles fo inventory management.

Definition/Overview:

Cash conversion cycle or CCC is the time duration in which a firm is able to convert its

resources into cash. It is actually the total time period required to first convert resources into

inventories, then inventories into finished goods, then goods into sales, and then sales into cash.

Here the resource may include raw material, labour, power and fuel, etc.

Short-term financial management:managing current assets and current liabilitiesis one of the

financial managers most important and time-consuming activities. The goal of short-term
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financial management is to manage each of the firms current assets and liabilities to achieve a

balance between profitability and risk that contributes positively to overall firm value. Central to

short-term financial management is an understanding of the firms cash conversion cycle.

Key Points:

1. Cash Conversion cycle

In other words, it can be defined as the time taken to collect cash from sales after making

payments for resources acquired by the firm. It should be noted that in many cases, sales can

be made on credit and purchasing of resources also does not immediately require cash

payments, so the difference should be taken into account between the actual cash collection

and sales/purchasing.

CCC = Inventory conversion period (in days) + Receivables conversion period (in days)

Payables conversion period (in days)

 Inventory conversion period = (Inventory/COGS)*365

 Receivables conversion period = (Receivables/Sales)*365

 Payables conversion period = (Accounts Payable/COGS)*365

2. The basis of Inventory accounting

Inventory needs to be accounted where it is held across accounting period boundaries since

generally expenses should be matched against the results of that expense within the same

period. When processes were simple and short then inventories were small but with more

complex processes then inventories became larger and significant valued items on the

balance sheet. This need to value unsold and incomplete goods has driven many new

behaviours into management practise. Perhaps most significant of these are the complexities

of fixed cost recovery, transfer pricing, and the separation of direct from indirect costs. This,

supposedly, precluded "anticipating income" or "declaring dividends out of capital". It is one

of the intangible benefits of Lean and the TPS that process times shorten and stock levels

decline to the point where the importance of this activity is hugely reduced and therefore

effort, especially managerial, to achieve it can be minimised.
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3. Accounting for Inventory

Each country has its own rules about accounting for inventory that fit with their financial

reporting rules.

So for example, organizations in the U.S. define inventory to suit their needs within US

Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP), the rules defined by the Financial

Accounting Standards Board (FASB) (and others) and enforced by the U.S. Securities and

Exchange Commission (SEC) and other federal and state agencies. Other countries often

have similar arrangements but with their own GAAP and national agencies instead.

It is intentional that financial accounting uses standards that allow the public to compare

firms' performance, cost accounting functions internally to an organization and potentially

with much greater flexibility. A discussion of inventory from standard and Theory of

Constraints-based (throughput) cost accounting perspective follows some examples and a

discussion of inventory from a financial accounting perspective.

The internal costing/valuation of inventory can be complex. Whereas in the past most

enterprises ran simple one process factories, this is quite probably in the minority in the 21st

century. Where 'one process' factories exist then there is a market for the goods created

which establishes an independent market value for the good. Today with multi-stage process

companies there is much inventory that would once have been finished goods which is now

held as 'work-in-process' (WIP). This needs to be valued in the accounts but the valuation is a

management decision since there is no market for the partially finished product. This

somewhat arbitrary 'valuation' of WIP combined with the allocation of overheads to it has led

to some unintended and undesirable results.

4. Financial accounting

An organization's inventory can appear a mixed blessing, since it counts as an asset on the

balance sheet, but it also ties up money that could serve for other purposes and requires

additional expense for its protection. Inventory may also cause significant tax expenses,

depending on particular countries' laws regarding depreciation of inventory, as in Thor Power

Tool Company v. Commissioner.
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Inventory appears as a on an organization's balance sheet because the organization can, in

principle, turn it into cash by selling it. Some organizations hold larger inventories than their

operations require in order to inflate their apparent asset value and their perceived

profitability.

In addition to the money tied up by acquiring inventory, inventory also brings associated

costs for warehouse space, for utilities, and for insurance to cover staff to handle and protect

it, fire and other disasters, obsolescence, shrinkage (theft and errors), and others. Such

holding costs can mount up: between a third and a half of its acquisition value per year.

Businesses that stock too little inventory cannot take advantage of large orders from

customers if they cannot deliver. The conflicting objectives of cost control and customer

service often pit an organization's financial and operating managers against its sales and

marketing departments. Sales people, in particular, often receive sales commission payments,

so unavailable goods may reduce their potential personal income. This conflict can be

minimised by reducing production time to being near or less than customer expected delivery

time. This effort, known as "Lean production" will significantly reduce working capital tied

up in inventory and reduce manufacturing costs

5. The role of a cost accountant on the 21st-century in a manufacturing organization

By helping the organization to make better decisions, the accountants can help the public

sector to change in a very positive way that delivers increased value for the taxpayers

investment. It can also help to incentivise progress and to ensure that reforms are sustainable

and effective in the long term, by ensuring that success is appropriately recognized in both

the formal and informal reward systems of the organization.

To say that they have a key role to play is an understatement. Finance is connected to most, if

not all, of the key business processes within the organization. It should be steering the

stewardship and accountability systems that ensure that the organization is conducting its

business in an appropriate, ethical manner. It is critical that these foundations are firmly laid.

So often they are the litmus test by which public confidence in the institution is either won or

lost.
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Finance should also be providing the information, analysis and advice to enable the

organizations service managers to operate effectively. This goes beyond the traditional

preoccupation with budgets how much have we spent so far, how much have we left to

spend? It is about helping the organization to better understand its own performance. That

means making the connections and understanding the relationships between given inputs the

resources brought to bear and the outputs and outcomes that they achieve. It is also about

understanding and actively managing risks within the organization and its activities.

6. FIFO vs. LIFO accounting

When a dealer sells goods from inventory, the value of the inventory is reduced by the cost of

goods sold (CoG sold). This is simple where the CoG has not varied across those held in

stock; but where it has, then an agreed method must be derived to evaluate it. For commodity

items that one cannot track individually, accountants must choose a method that fits the

nature of the sale. Two popular methods which normally exist are: FIFO and LIFO

accounting (first in - first out, last in - first out). FIFO regards the first unit that arrived in

inventory as the first one sold. LIFO considers the last unit arriving in inventory as the first

one sold. Which method an accountant selects can have a significant effect on net income

and book value and, in turn, on taxation. Using LIFO accounting for inventory, a company

generally reports lower net income and lower book value, due to the effects of inflation. This

generally results in lower taxation. Due to LIFO's potential to skew inventory value, UK

GAAP and IAS have effectively banned LIFO inventory accounting.

7. Standard cost accounting

Standard cost accounting uses ratios called efficiencies that compare the labour and materials

actually used to produce a good with those that the same goods would have required under

"standard" conditions. As long as similar actual and standard conditions obtain, few problems

arise. Unfortunately, standard cost accounting methods developed about 100 years ago, when

labor comprised the most important cost in manufactured goods. Standard methods continue

to emphasize labor efficiency even though that resource now constitutes a (very) small part

of cost in most cases.
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Standard cost accounting can hurt managers, workers, and firms in several ways. For

example, a policy decision to increase inventory can harm a manufacturing managers'

performance evaluation. Increasing inventory requires increased production, which means

that processes must operate at higher rates. When (not if) something goes wrong, the process

takes longer and uses more than the standard labor time. The manager appears responsible

for the excess, even though s/he has no control over the production requirement or the

problem.

In adverse economic times, firms use the same efficiencies to downsize, rightsize, or

otherwise reduce their labor force. Workers laid off under those circumstances have even less

control over excess inventory and cost efficiencies than their managers.

Many financial and cost accountants have agreed for many years on the desirability of

replacing standard cost accounting. They have not, however, found a successor.

8. Theory of Constraints cost accounting

Eliyahu M. Goldratt developed the Theory of Constraints in part to address the cost-

accounting problems in what he calls the "cost world". He offers a substitute, called

throughput accounting, that uses throughput (money for goods sold to customers) in place of

output (goods produced that may sell or may boost inventory) and considers labor as a fixed

rather than as a variable cost. He defines inventory simply as everything the organization

owns that it plans to sell, including buildings, machinery, and many other things in addition

to the categories listed here. Throughput accounting recognizes only one class of variable

costs: the truly variable costs like materials and components that vary directly with the

quantity produced.

Finished goods inventories remain balance-sheet assets, but labor efficiency ratios no longer

evaluate managers and workers. Instead of an incentive to reduce labor cost, throughput

accounting focuses attention on the relationships between throughput (revenue or income) on

one hand and controllable operating expenses and changes in inventory on the other. Those

relationships direct attention to the constraints or bottlenecks that prevent the system from

producing more throughput, rather than to people - who have little or no control over their

situations.
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9. National accounts

Inventories also play an important role in national accounts and the analysis of the business

cycle. Some short-term macroeconomic fluctuations are attributed to the inventory cycle.

10. Distressed inventory

Also known as distressed or expired stock, distressed inventory is inventory whose potential

to be sold at a normal cost has or will soon pass. In certain industries it could also mean that

the stock is or will soon be impossible to sell. Examples of distressed inventory include

products that have reached its expiry date, or has reached a date in advance of expiry at

which the planned market will no longer purchase it (e.g. 3 months left to expiry), clothing

that is defective or out of fashion, and old newspapers or magazines. It also includes

computer or consumer-electronic equipment that is obsolescent or discontinued and whose

manufacturer is unable to support it. One current example of distressed inventory is the VHS

format.

11. Inventory credit

Inventory credit refers to the use of stock or, inventory, as collateral to raise finance. Where

banks may be reluctant to accept traditional collateral, for example in developing countries

where land title may be lacking, inventory credit is a potentially important way of

overcoming financing constraints. This is not a new concept; archaeological evidence

suggests that it was practiced in Ancient Rome. Obtaining finance against stocks of a wide

range of products held in a bonded warehouse is common in much of the world. Inventory

credit on the basis of stored agricultural produce is widely used in Latin American countries

and in some Asian countries. A precondition for such credit is that banks must be confident

that the stored product will be available if they need to call on the collateral; this implies the

existence of a reliable network of certified warehouses. Banks also face problems in valuing

the inventory. The possibility of sudden falls in commodity prices means that they are

usually reluctant to lend more than about 60% of the value of the inventory at the time of the

loan.
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: Investment Information And Transactions

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To understand the types of investment

Definition/Overview:

Investment: or investing is a term with several closely-related meanings in business

management, finance and economics, related to saving or deferring consumption.

Key Points:

1. Types of investments

The term "investment" is used differently in economics and in finance. Economists refer to a real

investment (such as a machine or a house), while financial economists refer to a financial asset,

such as money that is put into a bank or the market, which may then be used to buy a real asset.

2. Finance

In finance, investment is the buying securities or other monetary or paper (financial) assets in

the money markets or capital markets, or in fairly liquid real assets, such as gold, real estate,

or collectibles. Valuation is the method for assessing whether a potential investment is worth

its price. Returns on investments will follow the risk-return spectrum.

Types of financial investments include shares, other equity investment, and bonds (including

bonds denominated in foreign currencies). These financial assets are then expected to provide

income or positive future cash flows, and may increase or decrease in value giving the

investor capital gains or losses.
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Trades in contingent claims or derivative securities do not necessarily have future positive

expected cash flows, and so are not considered assets, or strictly speaking, securities or

investments. Nevertheless, since their cash flows are closely related to (or derived from)

those of specific securities, they are often studied as or treated as investments.

Investments are often made indirectly through intermediaries, such as banks, mutual funds,

pension funds, insurance companies, collective investment schemes, and investment clubs.

Though their legal and procedural details differ, an intermediary generally makes an

investment using money from many individuals, each of whom receives a claim on the

intermediary.

3. Personal finance

Within personal finance, money used to purchase shares, put in a collective investment

scheme or used to buy any asset where there is an element of capital risk is deemed an

investment. Saving within personal finance refers to money put aside, normally on a regular

basis. This distinction is important, as investment risk can cause a capital loss when an

investment is realized, unlike saving(s) where the more limited risk is cash devaluing due to

inflation.

In many instances the terms saving and investment are used interchangeably, which confuses

this distinction. For example many deposit accounts are labeled as investment accounts by

banks for marketing purposes. Whether an asset is a saving(s) or an investment depends on

where the money is invested: if it is cash then it is savings, if its value can fluctuate then it is

investment.

4. Real estate

In real estate, investment money is used to purchase property for the purpose of holding or

leasing for income and there is an element of capital risk.

5. Residential real estate

The most common form of real estate investment as it includes property purchased as a

primary residence. In many cases the buyer does not have the full purchase price for a

property and must engage a lender such as a bank, finance company or private lender.
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Different countries have their individual normal lending levels, but usually they will fall into

the range of 70-90% of the purchase price. Against other types of real estate, residential real

estate is the least risky.

6. Commercial real estate

Commercial real estate consists of multifamily apartments, office buildings, retail space,

hotels and motels, warehouses, and other commercial properties. Due to the higher risk of

commercial real estate, loan-to-value ratios allowed by banks and other lenders are lower and

often fall in the range of 50-70%.

: How External Forces Affect Firm'S Value

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To understand the concept of enterprise value.

Definition/Overview:

Enterprise value (EV), Total enterprise value (TEV), or Firm value (FV) is an economic

measure reflecting the market value of the whole business. It is a sum of claims of all the

security-holders: debtholders, preferred shareholders, minority shareholders, common equity

holders, and others. Enterprise value is one of the fundamental metrics used in business

valuation, financial modeling, accounting, portfolio analysis, etc.
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Key Points:

1. EV equation

 Enterprise value =

 common equity at equity value

 + debt at market value

 + minority interest at market value, if any

 - associate company at market value, if any

 + preferred equity at market value

 - cash and cash-equivalents.

2. Comments on basic EV equation

 All the components are market, not book values.

 Cash is subtracted because when it is paid out as a dividend, it reduces the net cost to the

purchaser. Therefore, the business was only worth the reduced amount to start with. The same

effect is accomplished when the cash is used to pay down debt.

 Value of minority interest is added because it reflects the claim on assets consolidated into the

firm in question.

 Value of associate companies is subtracted because it reflects the claim on assets consolidated

into other firms.

 EV should also include such special components as unfunded pension liabilities, executive stock

options, environmental provisions, abandonment provisions, and so on, for they also reflect

claims on the company's assets.

 EV can be negative in certain casesfor example, when there is too much cash in the company.

 EV= NPV of the company.

3. Intuitive Understanding of Enterprise Value

A simplified way to understand Enterprise Value is to envision purchasing an entire business.

If you settle with all the security holders, you buy EV.
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4. Metrics using EV

 EV/EBITDA is the metric most used to measure how many years it would take to pay back the

investment. This metric is equivalent to the payback period used by debtholders (Debt/EBITDA).

The P/E metric used by shareholders is similar except it measures earnings, not cash flow.

 EBITDA/EV is the metric most used to measure the cash rate of return on the investment.

 EV/Sales an alternative to Price/Sales

5. Usage

 Because EV is a capital structure-neutral metric, it is useful when comparing companies with

diverse capital structures.

 Stock market investors use EV/EBITDA to compare returns between equivalent companies on a

risk adjusted basis. They can then superimpose their own choice of debt levels. In practice,

equity investors may have difficulty accurately assessing EV if they do not have access to the

market quotations of the company debt. It is not sufficient to substitute the book value of the debt

because a) the market interest rates may have changed, and b) the market's perception of the risk

of the loan may have changed since the debt was issued. Remember, the point of EV is to

neutralize the different risks, and costs of different capital structures.

 Buyers of controlling interests in a business use EV to compare returns between businesses, as

above. They also use the EV valuation to determine how much to pay for the whole entity (not

just the equity). They may want to change the capital structure once in control.

: Investing In Stocks

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To understand the history of bonds.

 To understand the role of shareholders.

 To apply bonds in a business.

 To discuss shareholders rights.
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 To discuss the trading of bonds.

Definition/Overview:

Share: In business and finance, a share (also referred to as equity share) of stock means a share

of ownership in a corporation (company). In the plural, stocks is often used as a synonym for

shares especially in the United States, but it is less commonly used that way outside of North

America.

Key Points:

1. History

During Roman times, the empire contracted out many of its services to private groups called

publicani. Shares in publicani were called "socii" (for large cooperatives) and "particulae"

which were analogous to today's Over-The-Counter shares of small companies. Though the

records available for this time are incomplete, Edward Chancellor states in his book Devil

Take the Hindmost that there is some evidence that a speculation in these shares became

increasingly widespread and that perhaps the first ever speculative bubble in "stocks"

occurred.

The first company to issue shares of stock after the Middle Ages was the Dutch East India

Company in 1606. The innovation of joint ownership made a great deal of Europe's

economic growth possible following the Middle Ages. The technique of pooling capital to

finance the building of ships, for example, made the Netherlands a maritime superpower.

Before adoption of the joint-stock corporation, an expensive venture such as the building of a

merchant ship could be undertaken only by governments or by very wealthy individuals or

families.

Economic historians find the Dutch stock market of the 1600s particularly interesting: there

is clear documentation of the use of stock futures, stock options, short selling, the use of

credit to purchase shares, a speculative bubble that crashed in 1695, and a change in fashion
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that unfolded and reverted in time with the market (in this case it was headdresses instead of

hemlines). Dr. Edward Stringham also noted that the uses of practices such as short selling

continued to occur during this time despite the government passing laws against it. This is

unusual because it shows individual parties fulfilling contracts that were not legally

enforceable and where the parties involved could incur a loss. Stringham argues that this

shows that contracts can be created and enforced without state sanction or, in this case, in

spite of laws to the contrary.

2. Shareholder

A shareholder (or stockholder) is an individual or company (including a corporation) that

legally owns one or more shares of stock in a joint stock company. Companies listed at the

stock market are expected to strive to enhance shareholder value.

Shareholders are granted special privileges depending on the class of stock, including the

right to vote (usually one vote per share owned) on matters such as elections to the board of

directors, the right to share in distributions of the company's income, the right to purchase

new shares issued by the company, and the right to a company's assets during a liquidation of

the company. However, shareholder's rights to a company's assets are subordinate to the

rights of the company's creditors.

Shareholders are considered by some to be a partial subset of stakeholders, which may

include anyone who has a direct or indirect equity interest in the business entity or someone

with even a non-pecuniary interest in a non-profit organization. Thus it might be common to

call volunteer contributors to an association stakeholders, even though they are not

shareholders.

Although directors and officers of a company are bound by fiduciary duties to act in the best

interest of the shareholders, the shareholders themselves normally do not have such duties

towards each other.

However, in a few unusual cases, some courts have been willing to imply such a duty

between shareholders. For example, in California, USA, majority shareholders of closely

held corporations have a duty to not destroy the value of the shares held by minority

shareholders.
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The largest shareholders (in terms of percentages of companies owned) are often mutual

funds, and especially passively managed exchange-traded funds.

3. Application

The owners of a company may want additional capital to invest in new projects within the

company. They may also simply wish to reduce their holding, freeing up capital for their own

private use.

By selling shares they can sell part or all of the company to many part-owners. The purchase

of one share entitles the owner of that share to literally share in the ownership of the

company, a fraction of the decision-making power, and potentially a fraction of the profits,

which the company may issue as dividends.

In the common case of a publicly traded corporation, where there may be thousands of

shareholders, it is impractical to have all of them making the daily decisions required to run a

company. Thus, the shareholders will use their shares as votes in the election of members of

the board of directors of the company.

In a typical case, each share constitutes one vote. Corporations may, however, issue different

classes of shares, which may have different voting rights. Owning the majority of the shares

allows other shareholders to be out-voted - effective control rests with the majority

shareholder (or shareholders acting in concert). In this way the original owners of the

company often still have control of the company.

4. Shareholder rights

Although ownership of 50% of shares does result in 50% ownership of a company, it does

not give the shareholder the right to use a company's building, equipment, materials, or other

property. This is because the company is considered a legal person, thus it owns all its assets

itself. This is important in areas such as insurance, which must be in the name of the

company and not the main shareholder.

In most countries, including the United States, boards of directors and company managers

have a fiduciary responsibility to run the company in the interests of its stockholders.

Nonetheless, as Martin Whitman writes:
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...it can safely be stated that there does not exist any publicly traded company where

management works exclusively in the best interests of OPMI [Outside Passive Minority

Investor] stockholders. Instead, there are both "communities of interest" and "conflicts of

interest" between stockholders (principal) and management (agent). This conflict is referred

to as the principal/agent problem. It would be naive to think that any management would

forgo management compensation, and management entrenchment, just because some of these

management privileges might be perceived as giving rise to a conflict of interest with

OPMIs.

Even though the board of directors runs the company, the shareholder has some impact on

the company's policy, as the shareholders elect the board of directors. Each shareholder

typically has a percentage of votes equal to the percentage of shares he or she owns. So as

long as the shareholders agree that the management (agent) are performing poorly they can

elect a new board of directors which can then hire a new management team. In practice,

however, genuinely contested board elections are rare. Board candidates are usually

nominated by insiders or by the board of the directors themselves, and a considerable amount

of stock is held and voted by insiders.

Owning shares does not mean responsibility for liabilities. If a company goes broke and has

to default on loans, the shareholders are not liable in any way. However, all money obtained

by converting assets into cash will be used to repay loans and other debts first, so that

shareholders cannot receive any money unless and until creditors have been paid (most often

the shareholders end up with nothing).

5. Means of financing

Financing a company through the sale of stock in a company is known as equity financing.

Alternatively, debt financing (for example issuing bonds) can be done to avoid giving up

shares of ownership of the company. Unofficial financing known as trade financing usually

provides the major part of a company's working capital (day-to-day operational needs).
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6. Trading

A stock exchange is an organization that provides a marketplace for either physical or virtual

trading shares, bonds and warrants and other financial products where investors (represented

by stock brokers) may buy and sell shares of a wide range of companies. A company will

usually list its shares by meeting and maintaining the listing requirements of a particular

stock exchange. In the United States, through the inter-market quotation system, stocks listed

on one exchange can also be bought or sold on several other exchanges, including relatively

new so-called ECNs (Electronic Communication Networks like Archipelago or Instinet).

In the USA stocks used to be broadly grouped into NYSE-listed and NASDAQ-listed stocks.

Until a few years ago there was a law that NYSE listed stocks were not allowed to be listed

on the NASDAQ or vice versa.

Many large non-U.S companies choose to list on a U.S. exchange as well as an exchange in

their home country in order to broaden their investor base. These companies have then to

ship a certain number of shares to a bank in the US (a certain percentage of their principal)

and put it in the safe of the bank. Then the bank where they deposited the shares can issue a

certain number of so-called American Depositary Shares, short ADS (singular). If someone

buys now a certain number of ADSs the bank where the shares are deposited issues an

American Depository Receipt (ADR) for the buyer of the ADSs.

Likewise, many large U.S. companies list themselves at foreign exchanges to raise capital

abroad.

7. Arbitrage trading

Although it makes sense for some companies to raise capital by offering stock on more than

one exchange, a keen investor with access to information about such discrepancies could

invest in expectation of their eventual convergence, known as an arbitrage trade. In today's

era of electronic trading, these discrepancies, if they exist, are both shorter-lived and more

quickly acted upon. As such, arbitrage opportunities disappear quickly due to the efficient

nature of the market.
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8. Buying

There are various methods of buying and financing stocks. The most common means is

through a stock broker. Whether they are a full service or discount broker, they arrange the

transfer of stock from a seller to a buyer. Most trades are actually done through brokers listed

with a stock exchange, such as the New York Stock Exchange.

There are many different stock brokers from which to choose, such as full service brokers or

discount brokers. The full service brokers usually charge more per trade, but give investment

advice or more personal service; the discount brokers offer little or no investment advice but

charge less for trades. Another type of broker would be a bank or credit union that may have

a deal set up with either a full service or discount broker.

There are other ways of buying stock besides through a broker. One way is directly from the

company itself. If at least one share is owned, most companies will allow the purchase of

shares directly from the company through their investor relations departments. However, the

initial share of stock in the company will have to be obtained through a regular stock broker.

Another way to buy stock in companies is through Direct Public Offerings which are usually

sold by the company itself. A direct public offering is an initial public offering in which the

stock is purchased directly from the company, usually without the aid of brokers.

When it comes to financing a purchase of stocks there are two ways: purchasing stock with

money that is currently in the buyer's ownership, or by buying stock on margin. Buying stock

on margin means buying stock with money borrowed against the stocks in the same account.

These stocks, or collateral, guarantee that the buyer can repay the loan; otherwise, the

stockbroker has the right to sell the stock (collateral) to repay the borrowed money. He can

sell if the share price drops below the margin requirement, at least 50% of the value of the

stocks in the account. Buying on margin works the same way as borrowing money to buy a

car or a house, using the car or house as collateral. Moreover, borrowing is not free; the

broker usually charges 8-10% interest.

9. Selling

Selling stock is procedurally similar to buying stock. Generally, the investor wants to buy

low and sell high, if not in that order (short selling); although a number of reasons may

induce an investor to sell at a loss, e.g., to avoid further loss.
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As with buying a stock, there is a transaction fee for the broker's efforts in arranging the

transfer of stock from a seller to a buyer. This fee can be high or low depending on which

type of brokerage, full service or discount, handles the transaction.

After the transaction has been made, the seller is then entitled to all of the money. An

important part of selling is keeping track of the earnings. Importantly, on selling the stock, in

jurisdictions that have them, capital gains taxes will have to be paid on the additional

proceeds, if any, that are in excess of the cost basis.

In Section 5 of this course you will cover these topics:
Investing In Bond

Mutual Funds And Asset Allocation

Investment Information And Transactions

Corporate Control And Governance

You may take as much time as you want to complete the topic coverd in section 5.
There is no time limit to finish any Section, However you must finish All Sections before

semester end date.

If you want to continue remaining courses later, you may save the course and leave.
You can continue later as per your convenience and this course will be avalible in your

area to save and continue later.

: Investing In Bond

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To understand the process of issuing of bonds

 To distinguish between different types of bonds.

 To determine the method of valuing bonds

 To understand investments in bonds
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 To understand bond indices.

Definition/Overview:

In finance, a bond is a debt security, in which the authorized issuer owes the holders a debt and,

depending on the terms of the bond, is obliged to pay interest (the coupon) and/or to repay the

principal at a later date, termed maturity.

Key Points:

1. Issuing bonds

Bonds are issued by public authorities, credit institutions, companies and supranational

institutions in the primary markets. The most common process of issuing bonds is through

underwriting. In underwriting, one or more securities firms or banks, forming a syndicate,

buy an entire issue of bonds from an issuer and re-sell them to investors. The security firm

takes the risk of being unable to sell on the issue to end investors. However government

bonds are instead typically auctioned.

2. Types of bonds

 Fixed rate bonds have a coupon that remains constant throughout the life of the bond.

 Floating rate notes (FRNs) have a coupon that is linked to an index. Common indices include:

money market indices, such as LIBOR or Euribor, and CPI (the Consumer Price Index). Coupon

examples: three month USD LIBOR + 0.20%, or twelve month CPI + 1.50%. FRN coupons reset

periodically, typically every one or three months. In theory, any Index could be used as the basis

for the coupon of an FRN, so long as the issuer and the buyer can agree to terms.

 Zero coupon bonds don't pay any interest. They are issued at a substantial discount to par value.

The bond holder receives the full principal amount on the redemption date. An example of zero

coupon bonds are Series E savings bonds issued by the U.S. government. Zero coupon bonds

may be created from fixed rate bonds by a financial institutions separating "stripping off" the
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coupons from the principal. In other words, the separated coupons and the final principal

payment of the bond are allowed to trade independently. See IO (Interest Only) and PO

(Principal Only).

 Inflation linked bonds, in which the principal amount and the interest payments are indexed to

inflation. The interest rate is normally lower than for fixed rate bonds with a comparable

maturity (this position briefly reversed itself for short-term UK bonds in December 2008).

However, as the principal amount grows, the payments increase with inflation. The government

of the United Kingdom was the first to issue inflation linked Gilts in the 1980s. Treasury

Inflation-Protected Securities (TIPS) and I-bonds are examples of inflation linked bonds issued

by the U.S. government.

 Other indexed bonds, for example equity-linked notes and bonds indexed on a business indicator

(income, added value) or on a country's GDP.

 Asset-backed securities are bonds whose interest and principal payments are backed by

underlying cash flows from other assets. Examples of asset-backed securities are mortgage-

backed securities (MBS's), collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) and collateralized debt

obligations (CDOs).

 Subordinated bonds are those that have a lower priority than other bonds of the issuer in case of

liquidation. In case of bankruptcy, there is a hierarchy of creditors. First the liquidator is paid,

then government taxes, etc. The first bond holders in line to be paid are those holding what is

called senior bonds. After they have been paid, the subordinated bond holders are paid. As a

result, the risk is higher. Therefore, subordinated bonds usually have a lower credit rating than

senior bonds. The main examples of subordinated bonds can be found in bonds issued by banks,

and asset-backed securities. The latter are often issued in tranches. The senior tranches get paid

back first, the subordinated tranches later.

 Perpetual bonds are also often called perpetuities. They have no maturity date. The most famous

of these are the UK Consols, which are also known as Treasury Annuities or Undated Treasuries.

Some of these were issued back in 1888 and still trade today, although the amounts are now

insignificant. Some ultra long-term bonds (sometimes a bond can last centuries: West Shore

Railroad issued a bond which matures in 2361 (i.e. 24th century)) are virtually perpetuities from

a financial point of view, with the current value of principal near zero.
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 Bearer bond is an official certificate issued without a named holder. In other words, the person

who has the paper certificate can claim the value of the bond. Often they are registered by a

number to prevent counterfeiting, but may be traded like cash. Bearer bonds are very risky

because they can be lost or stolen. Especially after federal income tax began in the United States,

bearer bonds were seen as an opportunity to conceal income or assets. U.S. corporations stopped

issuing bearer bonds in the 1960s, the U.S. Treasury stopped in 1982, and state and local tax-

exempt bearer bonds were prohibited in 1983.

 Registered bond is a bond whose ownership (and any subsequent purchaser) is recorded by the

issuer, or by a transfer agent. It is the alternative to a Bearer bond. Interest payments, and the

principal upon maturity, are sent to the registered owner.

 Municipal bond is a bond issued by a state, U.S. Territory, city, local government, or their

agencies. Interest income received by holders of municipal bonds is often exempt from the

federal income tax and from the income tax of the state in which they are issued, although

municipal bonds issued for certain purposes may not be tax exempt.

 Book-entry bond is a bond that does not have a paper certificate. As physically processing paper

bonds and interest coupons became more expensive, issuers (and banks that used to collect

coupon interest for depositors) have tried to discourage their use. Some book-entry bond issues

do not offer the option of a paper certificate, even to investors who prefer them.

 Lottery bond is a bond issued by a state, usually a European state. Interest is paid like a

traditional fixed rate bond, but the issuer will redeem randomly selected individual bonds within

the issue according to a schedule. Some of these redemptions will be for a higher value than the

face value of the bond.

 War bond is a bond issued by a country to fund a war.

3. Bonds issued by foreign entities

Some companies, banks, governments, and other sovereign entities may decide to issue

bonds in foreign currencies as it may appear to be more stable and predictable than their

domestic currency. Issuing bonds denominated in foreign currencies also gives issuers the

ability to access investment capital available in foreign markets. The proceeds from the

issuance of these bonds can be used by companies to break into foreign markets, or can be

converted into the issuing company's local currency to be used on existing operations.

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

113
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



Foreign issuer bonds can also be used to hedge foreign exchange rate risk. Some of these

bonds are called by their nicknames, such as the "samurai bond."

 Eurodollar bond, a U.S. dollar-denominated bond issued by a non-U.S. entity outside the U.S

 Kangaroo bond, an Australian dollar-denominated bond issued by a non-Australian entity in the

Australian market

 Maple bond, a Canadian Dollar-denominated bond issued by a non-Canadian entity in the

Canadian market

 Samurai bond, a Japanese Yen-denominated bond issued by a non-Japanese entity in the

Japanese market

 Shibosai Bond is a private placement bond in Japanese market with distribution limited to

institutions and banks.

 Yankee bond, a US Dollar-denominated bond issued by a non-US entity in the US market

 Shogun bond, a non-yen-denominated bond issued in Japan by a non-Japanese institution or

government

 Bulldog bond, a pound sterling-denominated bond issued in London by a foreign institution or

government

 Matrioshka Bond, a Russian rouble-denominated bond issued in the Russian Federation by non-

Russian entities. The name derives from the famous Russian wooden dolls, Matrioshka, popular

among foreign visitors to Russia

 Arirang bond, a Korean won-denominated bond issued by a non-Korean entity in the Korean

market

 Kimchi bond, a non-Korean won-denominated bond issued by a non-Korean entity in the Korean

market.

 Formosa bond, a non-New Taiwan Dollar-denominated bond issued by a non-Taiwan entity in

the Taiwan market

 Panda bond, a Chinese renminbi-denominated bond issued by a non-China entity in the People's

Republic of China market

 State of Israel bond, a bond denominated in multiple currencies issued by the State of Israel

through the Development Corporation of Israel.

www.bsscommunitycollege.in   www.bssnewgeneration.in  www.bsslifeskillscollege.in

114
www.onlineeducation.bharatsevaksamaj.net        www.bssskillmission.in

WWW.BSSVE.IN



4. Trading and valuing bonds

The interest rate that the issuer of a bond must pay is influenced by a variety of factors, such

as current market interest rates, the length of the term and the creditworthiness of the issuer.

These factors are likely to change over time, so the market price of a bond will vary after it is

issued. This price is expressed as a percentage of nominal value. Bonds are not necessarily

issued at par (100% of face value, corresponding to a price of 100), but bond prices converge

to par when they approach maturity (if the market expects the maturity payment to be made

in full and on time) as this is the price the issuer will pay to redeem the bond. At other times,

prices can be above par (bond is priced at greater than 100), which is called trading at a

premium, or below par (bond is priced at less than 100), which is called trading at a discount.

Most government bonds are denominated in units of $1000, if in the United States, or in units

of 100, if in the United Kingdom. Hence, a deep discount US bond, selling at a price of

75.26, indicates a selling price of $752.60 per bond sold. (Often, in the US, bond prices are

quoted in points and thirty-seconds of a point, rather than in decimal form.) Some short-term

bonds, such as the U.S. Treasury Bill, are always issued at a discount, and pay par amount at

maturity rather than paying coupons. This is called a discount bond.

The market price of a bond is the present value of all expected future interest and principal

payments of the bond discounted at the bond's redemption yield, or rate of return. That

relationship defines the redemption yield on the bond, which represents the current market

interest rate for bonds with similar characteristics. The yield and price of a bond are inversely

related so that when market interest rates rise, bond prices fall and vice versa. Thus the

redemption yield could be considered to be made up of two parts: the current yield (see

below) and the expected capital gain or loss: roughly the current yield plus the capital gain

(negative for loss) per year until redemption.

The market price of a bond may include the accrued interest since the last coupon date.

(Some bond markets include accrued interest in the trading price and others add it on

explicitly after trading.) The price including accrued interest is known as the "full" or "dirty

price". (See also Accrual bond.) The price excluding accrued interest is known as the "flat"

or "clean price".
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The interest rate adjusted for (divided by) the current price of the bond is called the current

yield (this is the nominal yield multiplied by the par value and divided by the price).

The relationship between yield and maturity for otherwise identical bonds is called a yield

curve.

Bonds markets, unlike stock or share markets, often do not have a centralized exchange or

trading system. Rather, in most developed bond markets such as the U.S., Japan and western

Europe, bonds trade in decentralized, dealer-based over-the-counter markets. In such a

market, market liquidity is provided by dealers and other market participants committing risk

capital to trading activity. In the bond market, when an investor buys or sells a bond, the

counterparty to the trade is almost always a bank or securities firm acting as a dealer. In some

cases, when a dealer buys a bond from an investor, the dealer carries the bond "in inventory."

The dealer's position is then subject to risks of price fluctuation. In other cases, the dealer

immediately resells the bond to another investor.

Bond markets can also differ from stock markets in that, in some markets, investors

sometimes do not pay brokerage commissions to dealers with whom they buy or sell bonds.

Rather, the dealers earn revenue by means of the spread, or difference, between the price at

which the dealer buys a bond from one investor -- the "bid" price -- and the price at which he

or she sells the same bond to another investor--the "ask" or "offer" price. The bid/offer

spread represents the total transaction cost associated with transferring a bond from one

investor to another.

5. Investing in bonds

Bonds are bought and traded mostly by institutions like pension funds, insurance companies

and banks. Most individuals who want to own bonds do so through bond funds. Still, in the

U.S., nearly 10% of all bonds outstanding are held directly by households.

Sometimes, bond markets rise (while yields fall) when stock markets fall. More relevantly,

the volatility of bonds (especially short and medium dated bonds) is lower than that of shares.

Thus bonds are generally viewed as safer investments than stocks, but this perception is only

partially correct. Bonds do suffer from less day-to-day volatility than stocks, and bonds'

interest payments are often higher than the general level of dividend payments. Bonds are
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liquid it is fairly easy to sell one's bond investments, though not nearly as easy as it is to sell

stocks and the comparative certainty of a fixed interest payment twice per year is attractive.

Bondholders also enjoy a measure of legal protection: under the law of most countries, if a

company goes bankrupt, its bondholders will often receive some money back (the recovery

amount), whereas the company's stock often ends up valueless. However, bonds can also be

risky:

 Fixed rate bonds are subject to interest rate risk, meaning that their market prices will decrease in

value when the generally prevailing interest rates rise. Since the payments are fixed, a decrease

in the market price of the bond means an increase in its yield. When the market interest rate rises,

the market price of bonds will fall, reflecting investors' ability to get a higher interest rate on

their money elsewhere perhaps by purchasing a newly issued bond that already features the

newly higher interest rate. Note that this drop in the bond's market price does not affect the

interest payments to the bondholder at all, so long-term investors who want a specific amount at

the maturity date need not worry about price swings in their bonds and do not suffer from

interest rate risk.

Price changes in a bond will also immediately affect mutual funds that hold these bonds. If

the value of the bonds held in a trading portfolio has fallen over the day, the value of the

portfolio will also have fall. This can be damaging for professional investors such as banks,

insurance companies, pension funds and asset managers (irrespective of whether the value is

immediately "marked to market" or not). If there is any chance a holder of individual bonds

may need to sell his bonds and "cash out", interest rate risk could become a real problem.

(Conversely, bonds' market prices would increase if the prevailing interest rate were to drop,

as it did from 2001 through 2003.) One way to quantify the interest rate risk on a bond is in

terms of its duration. Efforts to control this risk are called immunization or hedging.

 Bond prices can become volatile depending on the credit rating of the issuer - for instance if the

credit rating agencies like Standard & Poor's and Moody's upgrade or downgrade the credit

rating of the issuer. A downgrade will cause the market price of the bond to fall. As with interest

rate risk, this risk does not affect the bond's interest payments (provided the issuer does not

actually default), but puts at risk the market price, which affects mutual funds holding these

bonds, and holders of individual bonds who may have to sell them.
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 A company's bondholders may lose much or all their money if the company goes bankrupt.

Under the laws of many countries (including the United States and Canada), bondholders are in

line to receive the proceeds of the sale of the assets of a liquidated company ahead of some other

creditors. Bank lenders, deposit holders (in the case of a deposit taking institution such as a bank)

and trade creditors may take precedence.

There is no guarantee of how much money will remain to repay bondholders. As an example,

after an accounting scandal and a Chapter 11 bankruptcy at the giant telecommunications

company Worldcom, in 2004 its bondholders ended up being paid 35.7 cents on the dollar. In

a bankruptcy involving reorganization or recapitalization, as opposed to liquidation,

bondholders may end up having the value of their bonds reduced, often through an exchange

for a smaller number of newly issued bonds.

 Some bonds are callable, meaning that even though the company has agreed to make payments

plus interest towards the debt for a certain period of time, the company can choose to pay off the

bond early. This creates reinvestment risk, meaning the investor is forced to find a new place for

his money, and the investor might not be able to find as good a deal, especially because this

usually happens when interest rates are falling.

6. Bond indices

A number of bond indices exist for the purposes of managing portfolios and measuring

performance, similar to the S&P 500 or Russell Indexes for stocks. The most common

American benchmarks are the (ex) Lehman Aggregate, Citigroup BIG and Merrill Lynch

Domestic Master. Most indices are parts of families of broader indices that can be used to

measure global bond portfolios, or may be further subdivided by maturity and/or sector for

managing specialized portfolios.

: Mutual Funds And Asset Allocation

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:
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 To discuss the usage of mutual funds.

 To Determine the net asset value

 To determine the average annual return

 To understand turnover.

 To discuss expenses and TER

Definition/Overview:

A mutual fund is a professionally managed type of collective investment scheme that pools

money from many investors and invests it in stocks, bonds, short-term money market

instruments, and/or other securities. The mutual fund will have a fund manager that trades the

pooled money on a regular basis. Currently, the worldwide value of all mutual funds totals more

than $26 trillion.

Asset allocation is a term used to refer to how an investor distributes his or her investments

among various classes of investment vehicles (e.g., stocks and bonds).

A large part of financial planning is finding an asset allocation that is appropriate for a given

person in terms of their appetite for and ability to shoulder risk. This can depend on various

factors; see investor profile.

Key Points:

1. Usage

Since the Investment Company Act of 1940, a mutual fund is one of three basic types of

investment companies available in the United States.

Mutual funds can invest in many kinds of securities. The most common are cash instruments,

stock, and bonds, but there are hundreds of sub-categories. Stock funds, for instance, can

invest primarily in the shares of a particular industry, such as technology or utilities. These
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are known as sector funds. Bond funds can vary according to risk (e.g., high-yield junk bonds

or investment-grade corporate bonds), type of issuers (e.g., government agencies,

corporations, or municipalities), or maturity of the bonds (short- or long-term). Both stock

and bond funds can invest in primarily U.S. securities (domestic funds), both U.S. and

foreign securities (global funds), or primarily foreign securities (international funds).

Most mutual funds' investment portfolios are continually adjusted under the supervision of a

professional manager, who forecasts cash flows into and out of the fund by investors, as well

as the future performance of investments appropriate for the fund and chooses those which he

or she believes will most closely match the fund's stated investment objective. A mutual fund

is administered under an advisory contract with a management company, which may hire or

fire fund managers.

Mutual funds are subject to a special set of regulatory, accounting, and tax rules. In the U.S.,

unlike most other types of business entities, they are not taxed on their income as long as

they distribute 90% of it to their shareholders and the funds meet certain diversification

requirements in the Internal Revenue Code. Also, the type of income they earn is often

unchanged as it passes through to the shareholders. Mutual fund distributions of tax-free

municipal bond income are tax-free to the shareholder. Taxable distributions can be either

ordinary income or capital gains, depending on how the fund earned those distributions. Net

losses are not distributed or passed through to fund investors.

2. Net asset value

The net asset value, or NAV, is the current market value of a fund's holdings, less the fund's

liabilities, usually expressed as a per-share amount. For most funds, the NAV is determined

daily, after the close of trading on some specified financial exchange, but some funds update

their NAV multiple times during the trading day. The public offering price, or POP, is the

NAV plus a sales charge. Open-end funds sell shares at the POP and redeem shares at the

NAV, and so process orders only after the NAV is determined. Closed-end funds (the shares

of which are traded by investors) may trade at a higher or lower price than their NAV; this is

known as a premium or discount, respectively. If a fund is divided into multiple classes of

shares, each class will typically have its own NAV, reflecting differences in fees and

expenses paid by the different classes.
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Some mutual funds own securities which are not regularly traded on any formal exchange.

These may be shares in very small or bankrupt companies; they may be derivatives; or they

may be private investments in unregistered financial instruments (such as stock in a non-

public company). In the absence of a public market for these securities, it is the responsibility

of the fund manager to form an estimate of their value when computing the NAV. How much

of a fund's assets may be invested in such securities is stated in the fund's prospectus.

3. Average Annual Return

US mutual funds use SEC form N-1A to report the average annual compounded rates of

return for 1-year, 5-year and 10-year periods as the "average annual total return" for each

fund. The following formula is used:

P(1+T)n = ERV

Where:

P = a hypothetical initial payment of $1,000.

T = average annual total return.

n = number of years.

ERV = ending redeemable value of a hypothetical $1,000 payment made at the beginning of

the 1-, 5-, or 10-year periods at the end of the 1-, 5-, or 10-year periods (or fractional

portion).

4. Turnover

Turnover is a measure of the fund's securities transactions, usually calculated over a year's

time, and usually expressed as a percentage of net asset value.

This value is usually calculated as the value of all transactions (buying, selling) divided by 2

divided by the fund's total holdings; i.e., the fund counts one security sold and another one

bought as one "turnover". Thus turnover measures the replacement of holdings.

In Canada, under NI 81-106 (required disclosure for investment funds) turnover ratio is

calculated based on the lesser of purchases or sales divided by the average size of the

portfolio (including cash).
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5. Expenses and TER's

Mutual funds bear expenses similar to other companies. The fee structure of a mutual fund

can be divided into two or three main components: management fee, nonmanagement

expense, and 12b-1/non-12b-1 fees. All expenses are expressed as a percentage of the

average daily net assets of the fund.

5.1 Management fees

The management fee for the fund is usually synonymous with the contractual investment

advisory fee charged for the management of a fund's investments. However, as many

fund companies include administrative fees in the advisory fee component, when

attempting to compare the total management expenses of different funds, it is helpful to

define management fee as equal to the contractual advisory fee + the contractual

administrator fee. This "levels the playing field" when comparing management fee

components across multiple funds.

Contractual advisory fees may be structured as "flat-rate" fees, i.e., a single fee charged

to the fund, regardless of the asset size of the fund. However, many funds have

contractual fees which include breakpoints, so that as the value of a fund's assets

increases, the advisory fee paid decreases. Another way in which the advisory fees

remain competitive is by structuring the fee so that it is based on the value of all of the

assets of a group or a complex of funds rather than those of a single fund.

6. Asset allocation

Inherent in asset allocation is the idea that the best-performing asset varies from year to year

and is not easily predictable. Picking the "best" asset, although psychically appealing, is,

claim proponents of asset allocation, a fool's errand. Someone who "jumps" from the one

asset to the next, according to whim, may easily end up with worse results than any

consistent plan. Such a person can be quite successful at transferring value away from

himself.

A fundamental justification for asset allocation is the notion that different asset classes offer

returns that aren't perfectly correlated, hence diversification reduces the overall risk in terms
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of the variability of returns for a given level of expected return. Therefore having a mixture

of asset classes is more likely to meet your goals.

In this respect diversification has been described as "the only free lunch you will find in the

investment game." Academic research has painstakingly explained the importance of asset

allocation, and the problems of active management (see academics section, below). This

explains the steadily rising popularity of passive investment styles using index funds.

Unfortunately, there is no such thing as a free lunch. The risk reduction assumed from asset

allocation is strictly theoretical (typically based upon relationships that existed over a

particular period with no guarantee that these same relationships will continue in the future).

This is the crux of where asset allocation or modern portfolio theory breaks down.

Unlike Defined Risk Strategies, asset allocation merely expresses risk in historical standards.

7. Examples of asset classes

 cash (i.e., money market accounts)

 Bonds: investment grade or junk (high yield); government or corporate; short-term, intermediate,

long-term; domestic, foreign, emerging markets

 stocks: value or growth; large-cap versus small-cap; domestic, foreign, emerging markets

 real estate

 foreign currency

 natural resources

 precious metals

 luxury collectables such as art, fine wine and automobiles

To further break down equity investments into additional asset classes consider the

following:

By size:

 Large-Cap

 Mid-Cap

 Small-Cap

By style:

 Growth
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 Blend

 Value

 REITs

 International Investments: foreign or emerging markets

 Life settlements

8. Performance indicators

McGuigan described an examination of funds that were in the top quartile of performance

during 1983 to 1993. During the second measurement period of 1993 to 2003, only 28.57%

of the funds remained in the top quartile. 33.33% of the funds dropped to the second quartile.

The rest of the funds dropped to the third or fourth quartile.

In fact, low cost was a more reliable indicator of performance. Bogle noted that an

examination of 5 year performance data of large-cap blend funds revealed that the lowest

cost quartile funds had the best performance, and the highest cost quartile funds had the

worst performance.

9. Return versus risk trade-off

In asset allocation planning, the decision on the amount of stocks versus Bonds in one's

portfolio is a very important decision. Simply buying stocks without regard of a possible bear

market can result in panic selling later. One's true risk tolerance can be hard to gauge until

having experienced a real bear market with money invested in the market. Finding the proper

balance is key

: Investment Information And Transactions

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Explain hedging

 To Determine the speculation and arbitrage
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 To discuss the types of derivatives.

Definition/Overview:

Derivatives are financial contracts, or financial instruments, whose values are derived from the

value of something else (known as the underlying). The underlying on which a derivative is

based can be an asset (e.g., commodities, equities (stocks), residential mortgages, commercial

real estate, loans, bonds), an index (e.g., interest rates, exchange rates, stock market indices,

consumer price index (CPI) see inflation derivatives), or other items (e.g., weather conditions, or

other derivatives). Credit derivatives are based on loans, bonds or other forms of credit.

The main types of derivatives are: forwards (which if traded on an exchange are known as

futures); options; and swaps.

Derivatives can be used to mitigate the risk of economic loss arising from changes in the value of

the underlying. This activity is known as hedging. Alternatively, derivatives can be used by

investors to increase the profit arising if the value of the underlying moves in the direction they

expect. This activity is known as speculation.

Because the value of a derivative is contingent on the value of the underlying, the notional value

of derivatives is recorded off the balance sheet of an institution, although the market value of

derivatives is recorded on the balance sheet.

Key Points:

1. Hedging

Derivatives allow risk about the value of the underlying asset to be transferred from one

party to another. For example, a wheat farmer and a miller could sign a futures contract to

exchange a specified amount of cash for a specified amount of wheat in the future. Both

parties have reduced a future risk: for the wheat farmer, the uncertainty of the price, and for

the miller, the availability of wheat. However, there is still the risk that no wheat will be

available due to causes unspecified by the contract, like the weather, or that one party will
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renege on the contract. (Although a third party, called a clearing house, insures a futures

contract, not all derivatives are insured against counterparty risk.)

From another perspective, the farmer and the miller both reduce a risk and acquire a risk

when they sign the futures contract: The farmer reduces the risk that the price of wheat will

fall below the price specified in the contract and acquires the risk that the price of wheat will

rise above the price specified in the contract (thereby losing additional income that he could

have earned). The miller, on the other hand, acquires the risk that the price of wheat will fall

below the price specified in the contract (thereby paying more in the future than he otherwise

would) and reduces the risk that the price of wheat will rise above the price specified in the

contract. In this sense, one party is the insurer (risk taker) for one type of risk, and the

counterparty is the insurer (risk taker) for another type of risk.

Hedging also occurs when an individual or institution buys an asset (like a commodity, a

bond that has coupon payments, a stock that pays dividends, and so on) and sells it using a

futures contract. The individual or institution has access to the asset for a specified amount of

time, and then can sell it in the future at a specified price according to the futures contract. Of

course, this allows the individual or institution the benefit of holding the asset while reducing

the risk that the future selling price will deviate unexpectedly from the market's current

assessment of the future value of the asset.

2. Speculation and arbitrage

Derivatives can be used to acquire risk, rather than to insure or hedge against risk. Thus,

some individuals and institutions will enter into a derivative contract to speculate on the

value of the underlying asset, betting that the party seeking insurance will be wrong about the

future value of the underlying asset. Speculators will want to be able to buy an asset in the

future at a low price according to a derivative contract when the future market price is high,

or to sell an asset in the future at a high price according to a derivative contract when the

future market price is low.

Individuals and institutions may also look for arbitrage opportunities, as when the current

buying price of an asset falls below the price specified in a futures contract to sell the asset.
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Speculative trading in derivatives gained a great deal of notoriety in 1995 when Nick Leeson,

a trader at Barings Bank, made poor and unauthorized investments in futures contracts.

Through a combination of poor judgment, lack of oversight by the bank's management and

by regulators, and unfortunate events like the Kobe earthquake, Leeson incurred a $1.3

billion loss that bankrupted the centuries-old institution.

3. Types of derivatives

3.1 OTC and exchange-traded

Broadly speaking there are two distinct groups of derivative contracts, which are

distinguished by the way they are traded in market:

 Over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives are contracts that are traded (and privately negotiated)

directly between two parties, without going through an exchange or other intermediary. Products

such as swaps, forward rate agreements, and exotic options are almost always traded in this way.

The OTC derivative market is the largest market for derivatives, and is unregulated. According

to the Bank for International Settlements, the total outstanding notional amount is $596 trillion

(as of December 2007). Of this total notional amount, 66% are interest rate contracts, 10% are

credit default swaps (CDS), 9% are foreign exchange contracts, 2% are commodity contracts, 1%

are equity contracts, and 12% are other. OTC derivatives are largely subject to counterparty risk,

as the validity of a contract depends on the counterparty's solvency and ability to honor its

obligations.

 Exchange-traded derivatives (ETD) are those derivatives products that are traded via specialized

derivatives exchanges or other exchanges. A derivatives exchange acts as an intermediary to all

related transactions, and takes Initial margin from both sides of the trade to act as a guarantee.

The world's largest derivatives exchanges (by number of transactions) are the Korea Exchange

(which lists KOSPI Index Futures & Options), Eurex (which lists a wide range of European

products such as interest rate & index products), and CME Group (made up of the 2007 merger

of the Chicago Mercantile Exchange and the Chicago Board of Trade and the 2008 acquisition of

the New York Mercantile Exchange). According to BIS, the combined turnover in the world's

derivatives exchanges totalled USD 344 trillion during Q4 2005. Some types of derivative
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instruments also may trade on traditional exchanges. For instance, hybrid instruments such as

convertible bonds and/or convertible preferred may be listed on stock or bond exchanges. Also,

warrants (or "rights") may be listed on equity exchanges. Performance Rights, Cash xPRTs and

various other instruments that essentially consist of a complex set of options bundled into a

simple package are routinely listed on equity exchanges. Like other derivatives, these publicly

traded derivatives provide investors access to risk/reward and volatility characteristics that, while

related to an underlying commodity, nonetheless are distinctive.

3.2 Common derivative contract types

There are three major classes of derivatives:

 Futures/Forwards are contracts to buy or sell an asset on or before a future date at a price

specified today. A futures contract differs from a forward contract in that the futures contract is a

standardized contract written by a clearing house that operates an exchange where the contract

can be bought and sold, while a forward contract is a non-standardized contract written by the

parties themselves.

 Options are contracts that give the owner the right, but not the obligation, to buy (in the case of a

call option) or sell (in the case of a put option) an asset. The price at which the sale takes place is

known as the strike price, and is specified at the time the parties enter into the option. The option

contract also specifies a maturity date. In the case of a European option, the owner has the right

to require the sale to take place on (but not before) the maturity date; in the case of an American

option, the owner can require the sale to take place at any time up to the maturity date. If the

owner of the contract exercises this right, the counterparty has the obligation to carry out the

transaction.

 Swaps are contracts to exchange cash (flows) on or before a specified future date based on the

underlying value of currencies/exchange rates, bonds/interest rates, commodities, stocks or other

assets.

More complex derivatives can be created by combining the elements of these basic

types. For example, the holder of a swaption has the right, but not the obligation, to

enter into a swap on or before a specified future date.
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: Corporate Control And Governance

Topic Objective:

At the end of this topic students will be able:

 To Explain corporate governance

 To Determine the impact of corporate governance

 To Discuss the role of institutional investors.

 To Define parties to corporate governance

 To Differentiate between internal and external governance factors.

Definition/Overview:

Corporate governance is the set of processes, customs, policies, laws and institutions affecting

the way a corporation is directed, administered or controlled. Corporate governance also includes

the relationships among the many stakeholders involved and the goals for which the corporation

is governed. The principal stakeholders are the shareholders, management and the board of

directors. Other stakeholders include labor, customers, creditors (e.g., banks, bond holders),

suppliers, regulators, and the community at large.

Key Points:

1. Corporate governance

Corporate governance is a multi-faceted subject. An important theme of corporate

governance is to ensure the accountability of certain individuals in an organization through

mechanisms that try to reduce or eliminate the principal-agent problem. A related but

separate thread of discussions focus on the impact of a corporate governance system in

economic efficiency, with a strong emphasis an shareholders welfare. There are yet other

aspects to the corporate governance subject, such as the stakeholder view and the corporate

governance models around the world.
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There has been renewed interest in the corporate governance practices of modern

corporations since 2001, particularly due to the high-profile collapses of a number of large

U.S. firms such as Enron Corporation and Worldcom. In 2002, the US federal government

passed the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, intending to restore public confidence in corporate

governance.

2. Impact of Corporate Governance

The positive effect of good corporate governance on different stakeholders ultimately is a

strengthened economy, and hence good corporate governance is a tool for socio-economic

development.

3. Role of Institutional Investors

Many years ago, worldwide, buyers and sellers of corporation stocks were individual

investors, such as wealthy businessmen or families, who often had a vested, personal and

emotional interest in the corporations whose shares they owned. Over time, markets have

become largely institutionalized: buyers and sellers are largely institutions (e.g., pension

funds, mutual funds, hedge funds, exchange traded funds, other investor groups; insurance

companies, banks, brokers, and other financial institutions).

The rise of the institutional investor has brought with it some increase of professional

diligence which has tended to improve regulation of the stock market (but not necessarily in

the interest of the small investor or even of the nave institutions, of which there are many).

Note that this process occurred simultaneously with the direct growth of individuals investing

indirectly in the market (for example individuals have twice as much money in mutual funds

as they do in bank accounts). However this growth occurred primarily by way of individuals

turning over their funds to 'professionals' to manage, such as in mutual funds. In this way, the

majority of investment now is described as "institutional investment" even though the vast

majority of the funds are for the benefit of individual investors.

Program trading, the hallmark of institutional trading, averaged over 80% of NYSE trades in

some months of 2007. (Moreover, these statistics do not reveal the full extent of the practice,
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because of so-called 'iceberg' orders. See Quantity and display instructions under last

reference.)

Unfortunately, there has been a concurrent lapse in the oversight of large corporations, which

are now almost all owned by large institutions. The Board of Directors of large corporations

used to be chosen by the principal shareholders, who usually had an emotional as well as

monetary investment in the company (think Ford), and the Board diligently kept an eye on

the company and its principal executives (they usually hired and fired the President, or Chief

Executive Officer CEO).

A recent study by Credit Suisse found that companies in which "founding families retain a

stake of more than 10% of the company's capital enjoyed a superior performance over their

respective sectorial peers." Since 1996, this superior performance amounts to 8% per year.

Forget the celebrity CEO. "Look beyond Six Sigma and the latest technology fad. One of the

biggest strategic advantages a company can have, [BusinessWeek has found], is blood lines."

In that last study, "BW identified five key ingredients that contribute to superior performance.

Not all are qualities unique to enterprises with retained family interests. But they do go far to

explain why it helps to have someone at the helm or active behind the scenes who has more

than a mere paycheck and the prospect of a cozy retirement at stake." See also, "Revolt in

the Boardroom," by Alan Murray.

Nowadays, if the owning institutions don't like what the President/CEO is doing and they feel

that firing them will likely be costly (think "golden handshake") and/or time consuming, they

will simply sell out their interest. The Board is now mostly chosen by the President/CEO,

and may be made up primarily of their friends and associates, such as officers of the

corporation or business colleagues. Since the (institutional) shareholders rarely object, the

President/CEO generally takes the Chair of the Board position for his/herself (which makes it

much more difficult for the institutional owners to "fire" him/her). Occasionally, but rarely,

institutional investors support shareholder resolutions on such matters as executive pay and

anti-takeover measures.
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Finally, the largest pools of invested money (such as the mutual fund 'Vanguard 500', or the

largest investment management firm for corporations, State Street Corp.) are designed simply

to invest in a very large number of different companies with sufficient liquidity, based on the

idea that this strategy will largely eliminate individual company financial or other risk and,

therefore, these investors have even less interest in a particular company's governance.

Since the marked rise in the use of Internet transactions from the 1990s, both individual and

professional stock investors around the world have emerged as a potential new kind of major

(short term) force in the direct or indirect ownership of corporations and in the markets: the

casual participant. Even as the purchase of individual shares in any one corporation by

individual investors diminishes, the sale of derivatives (e.g., exchange-traded funds (ETFs),

Stock market index options , etc.) has soared. So, the interests of most investors are now

increasingly rarely tied to the fortunes of individual corporations.

But, the ownership of stocks in markets around the world varies; for example, the majority of

the shares in the Japanese market are held by financial companies and industrial corporations

(there is a large and deliberate amount of cross-holding among Japanese keiretsu

corporations and within S. Korean chaebol 'groups') , whereas stock in the USA or the UK

and Europe are much more broadly owned, often still by large individual investors.

4. Parties to corporate governance

Parties involved in corporate governance include the regulatory body (e.g. the Chief

Executive Officer, the board of directors, management and shareholders). Other stakeholders

who take part include suppliers, employees, creditors, customers and the community at large.

In corporations, the shareholder delegates decision rights to the manager to act in the

principal's best interests. This separation of ownership from control implies a loss of

effective control by shareholders over managerial decisions. Partly as a result of this

separation between the two parties, a system of corporate governance controls is

implemented to assist in aligning the incentives of managers with those of shareholders. With

the significant increase in equity holdings of investors, there has been an opportunity for a

reversal of the separation of ownership and control problems because ownership is not so

diffuse.
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A board of directors often plays a key role in corporate governance. It is their responsibility

to endorse the organisation's strategy, develop directional policy, appoint, supervise and

remunerate senior executives and to ensure accountability of the organisation to its owners

and authorities.

The Company Secretary, known as a Corporate Secretary in the US and often referred to as a

Chartered Secretary if qualified by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators

(ICSA), is a high ranking professional who is trained to uphold the highest standards of

corporate governance, effective operations, compliance and administration.

All parties to corporate governance have an interest, whether direct or indirect, in the

effective performance of the organisation. Directors, workers and management receive

salaries, benefits and reputation, while shareholders receive capital return. Customers receive

goods and services; suppliers receive compensation for their goods or services. In return

these individuals provide value in the form of natural, human, social and other forms of

capital.

A key factor is an individual's decision to participate in an organisation e.g. through

providing financial capital and trust that they will receive a fair share of the organisational

returns. If some parties are receiving more than their fair return then participants may choose

to not continue participating leading to organizational collapse.

5. Principles

Key elements of good corporate governance principles include honesty, trust and integrity,

openness, performance orientation, responsibility and accountability, mutual respect, and

commitment to the organization.

Of importance is how directors and management develop a model of governance that aligns

the values of the corporate participants and then evaluate this model periodically for its

effectiveness. In particular, senior executives should conduct themselves honestly and

ethically, especially concerning actual or apparent conflicts of interest, and disclosure in

financial reports.
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Commonly accepted principles of corporate governance include:

 Rights and equitable treatment of shareholders: Organizations should respect the rights of

shareholders and help shareholders to exercise those rights. They can help shareholders exercise

their rights by effectively communicating information that is understandable and accessible and

encouraging shareholders to participate in general meetings.

 Interests of other stakeholders: Organizations should recognize that they have legal and other

obligations to all legitimate stakeholders.

 Role and responsibilities of the board: The board needs a range of skills and understanding to be

able to deal with various business issues and have the ability to review and challenge

management performance. It needs to be of sufficient size and have an appropriate level of

commitment to fulfill its responsibilities and duties. There are issues about the appropriate mix

of executive and non-executive directors. The key roles of chairperson and CEO should not be

held by the same person.

 Integrity and ethical behaviour: Ethical and responsible decision making is not only important

for public relations, but it is also a necessary element in risk management and avoiding lawsuits.

Organizations should develop a code of conduct for their directors and executives that promotes

ethical and responsible decision making. It is important to understand, though, that reliance by a

company on the integrity and ethics of individuals is bound to eventual failure. Because of this,

many organizations establish Compliance and Ethics Programs to minimize the risk that the firm

steps outside of ethical and legal boundaries.

 Disclosure and transparency: Organizations should clarify and make publicly known the roles

and responsibilities of board and management to provide shareholders with a level of

accountability. They should also implement procedures to independently verify and safeguard

the integrity of the company's financial reporting. Disclosure of material matters concerning the

organization should be timely and balanced to ensure that all investors have access to clear,

factual information.

Issues involving corporate governance principles include:

 internal controls and the independence of the entity's auditors

 oversight and management of risk

 oversight of the preparation of the entity's financial statements
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 review of the compensation arrangements for the chief executive officer and other senior

executives

 the resources made available to directors in carrying out their duties

 the way in which individuals are nominated for positions on the board

 dividend policy

Nevertheless "corporate governance," despite some feeble attempts from various quarters,

remains an ambiguous and often misunderstood phrase. For quite some time it was confined

only to corporate management. That is not so. It is something much broader, for it must

include a fair, efficient and transparent administration and strive to meet certain well defined,

written objectives. Corporate governance must go well beyond law. The quantity, quality and

frequency of financial and managerial disclosure, the degree and extent to which the board of

Director (BOD) exercise their trustee responsibilities (largely an ethical commitment), and

the commitment to run a transparent organization- these should be constantly evolving due to

interplay of many factors and the roles played by the more progressive/responsible elements

within the corporate sector. In India, a strident demand for evolving a code of good practices

by the corporation, written by each corporation management, is emerging.

6. Mechanisms and controls

Corporate governance mechanisms and controls are designed to reduce the inefficiencies that

arise from moral hazard and adverse selection. For example, to monitor managers' behaviour,

an independent third party (the auditor) attests the accuracy of information provided by

management to investors. An ideal control system should regulate both motivation and

ability.

7. Internal corporate governance controls

Internal corporate governance controls monitor activities and then take corrective action to

accomplish organisational goals. Examples include:

 Monitoring by the board of directors: The board of directors, with its legal authority to hire, fire

and compensate top management, safeguards invested capital. Regular board meetings allow

potential problems to be identified, discussed and avoided. Whilst non-executive directors are
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thought to be more independent, they may not always result in more effective corporate

governance and may not increase performance. Different board structures are optimal for

different firms. Moreover, the ability of the board to monitor the firm's executives is a function

of its access to information. Executive directors possess superior knowledge of the decision-

making process and therefore evaluate top management on the basis of the quality of its

decisions that lead to financial performance outcomes, ex ante. It could be argued, therefore, that

executive directors look beyond the financial criteria.

 Balance of power: The simplest balance of power is very common; require that the President be a

different person from the Treasurer. This application of separation of power is further developed

in companies where separate divisions check and balance each other's actions. One group may

propose company-wide administrative changes, another group review and can veto the changes,

and a third group check that the interests of people (customers, shareholders, employees) outside

the three groups are being met.

 Remuneration: Performance-based remuneration is designed to relate some proportion of salary

to individual performance. It may be in the form of cash or non-cash payments such as shares

and share options, superannuation or other benefits. Such incentive schemes, however, are

reactive in the sense that they provide no mechanism for preventing mistakes or opportunistic

behaviour, and can elicit myopic behaviour.

8. External corporate governance controls

External corporate governance controls encompass the controls external stakeholders

exercise over the organisation. Examples include:

 competition

 debt covenants

 demand for and assessment of performance information (especially financial statements)

 government regulations

 managerial labour market

 media pressure

 takeovers
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9. Systemic problems of corporate governance

 Demand for information: A barrier to shareholders using good information is the cost of

processing it, especially to a small shareholder. The traditional answer to this problem is the

efficient market hypothesis (in finance, the efficient market hypothesis (EMH) asserts that

financial markets are efficient), which suggests that the shareholder will free ride on the

judgements of larger professional investors.

 Monitoring costs: In order to influence the directors, the shareholders must combine with others

to form a significant voting group which can pose a real threat of carrying resolutions or

appointing directors at a general meeting.

 Supply of accounting information: Financial accounts form a crucial link in enabling providers

of finance to monitor directors. Imperfections in the financial reporting process will cause

imperfections in the effectiveness of corporate governance. This should, ideally, be corrected by

the working of the external auditing process.
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